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Company Information 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 
 

Nature of business Exploration and mining of mineral rights 

 

Registration number  1986/004649/06 

  

Directors 1 Mr M.K. Diale 

  Mr A.M. Sher 

  Mr M.W. Rosslee 

  Mr G.P. Sequeira 

  Mr J.J. Serfontein 

 

Company secretary Arcay Client Support (Proprietary) Limited 

 

Registered address Arcay Client Support (Proprietary) Limited 

  Arcay House 

  Number 3 Anerley Road 

  Parktown 

  Johannesburg 

 

Business Address Second Floor 

  Longpoint Office Park 

  Cnr Witkoppen and Monte Casino Blvd 

  Magalisig 

 

Postal Address PO Box 1658 

  Witkoppen, 2058 

 

Telephone +27 (0) 11 578 7240 

Fax  +27 (0) 11 465 0145 

E-mail info@baubaplatinum.com 

 

Bankers Nedbank Limited 

  Standard Bank of South Africa Limited 

 

Transfer Secretaries Computershare Investor Services (Proprietary) Limited 

 

Sponsor Arcay Moela Sponsors (Proprietary) Limited 

 

Auditors TAG Incorporated 

 

Attorneys Eversheds 

  Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr 

 

Country of incorporation Republic of South Africa 

 
1See the Directors report for changes to directors that took place subsequent to year end. 
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Chairman’s and Chief Executive Officer’s report 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 

Introduction 

The Group has found the recent market 

conditions rather challenging as the construction 

industry continues to contract. This has 

negatively impacted on the results and as 

detailed further in this report, the current assets 

of the Group will be disposed of in an orderly 

fashion in order to focus on the announced 

Asset for Share Transaction. 

 

Quarry Operations 

In the first half of the financial year mining 

activities at the Diamond Quartzite Quarry did 

not achieve the required levels of output to 

warrant the operations to be classified as being 

in commercial production and thus all costs net 

of revenue have been capitalised. At 

beginning of 2010 production at the quarry was 

suspended pending further optimisation studies 

and consideration of disposal to interested 

parties.  

Mining operations at the Picture Stone deposits 

have been delayed, pending the conclusion of 

suitable trial mining to confirm the available 

materials as well as the most appropriate 

mining method. The Company is in discussion 

with various parties about an outright disposal 

of the quarry but no final agreements have 

been reached as yet.  

Operating expenses have been incurred 

mainly on corporate activities and head office 

costs and these have been partially covered 

from dividend income streams generated from 

Bauba‟s shareholding in Qinisele Resources.  

Exploration 

Exploration activities at the Limestone rights 

have been limited to date but a full 

programme is being developed in conjunction 

with the technical advisors, The Mineral  

 

 

Corporation. The coal prospecting rights held 

by Dikopane, of which Bauba is now 36.5% 

shareholder, are vast and as such the 

Company is evaluating both a focused 

exploration programme linked to the most 

value accretive options for the resource. 

Several entities have approached the 

Company around jointly developing this coal 

resource and the discussions are ongoing.    

Asset for Share Transaction 

Post year end, and in line with Bauba‟s 

strategic objective of procuring, acquiring and 

developing junior mining and exploration 

projects, the Company entered into a 

Company transforming binding agreement 

with Hlabirwa Mining Investments (Pty) Limited 

(“Hlabirwa”), Highland Trading Investments 

Limited (“Highland”) and the shareholders of 

Ndarama Mineral Resources (Pty) Limited 

(“Ndarama”), whereby Bauba acquired an 

effective 60% direct and indirect participation 

in Bauba A Hlabirwa Mining Investments (Pty) 

Limited (“Bauba”). In terms of the transaction, 

Bauba acquired it‟s participation in the project 

for a purchase consideration of R340 623 000 

which was settled through the issue of 68 124 

600 new shares in Bauba at an issue price of 

R5.00 per share. Further details are disclosed in 

the subsequent events note. 

Overall Financial Review 

As a consequence of the Asset for Share 

Transaction and the fact that the Group will be 

focused on the development of these new 

PGM assets while disposing of its‟ non-core 

assets through an orderly process, the financial 

statements only reflect the continuing side of 

the business. This only comprises the corporate 

and related activities and in the forthcoming 

year will include the acquisition and related 

activities. 
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Chairman’s and Chief Executive Officer’s report 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

Operating losses and headline earnings are 

slightly higher due to increased borrowing 

costs. Included in discontinued operations is an 

amount of just under R17 million in respect of 

the impairment charge in respect of the 

impairment provision on the non-core assets, as 

the Group is likely to realise lower values on 

disposal in the current market conditions. As 

these only contribute a small portion of the 

overall asset base, it is in the Group‟s interest to 

rather dispose of these assets and extinguish 

the Group‟s existing debt and not allow these 

to be a distraction to management. The PGM 

resource base will provide shareholders with 

greater long term value appreciation in the 

future.  

The Board and appreciation 

We would like to express our appreciation of 

the support of all members of the Board during 

this year of transition. We are still facing 

challenging economic markets and will rely on 

your continued support as we endeavour to 

further develop and grow the Group‟s new 

asset base. 

 

 

 

 Mpho Diale Mark Rosslee 

Chairman Chief Executive Officer  
15 September 2010
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Mineral Resources Statement 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 

 

The Group as at year end owns two mining 

rights and one prospecting right. The mining 

rights comprise some 2 567 hectares in the 

Richtersveld region in respect of Diamond 

Quartzite and the other two rights are held in 

respect of the Picture Stone. 

THE QUARRIES 

Lekkersing (Diamond Quartzite) 

Diamond Quartzite is, in essence, sandstone 

over 800 million years old. Its hardness 

distinguishes it from most quartzite worldwide, 

hence the reference to diamond in its name. 

Diamond Quartzite is a metamorphic high 

grade assemblage of quartz (96-98%), micas (2-

3%) and other metallic minerals in trace. It is a 

continuous alternate of thick quartzite beds (ex 

sand – sandstone) and thin micaceous layers 

(ex silt – siltstone), the softening and weathering 

of the latter results in the natural separation of 

quartzite slabs (natural cleft stone). 

The Hilda formation (quartzite) extends from 

±20km south of the Steinkopf – Port Nolloth road 

northwards, past Lekkersing, to the Orange 

River and represents an almost internationally 

unique deposit. Although this type of deposit 

does occur elsewhere, nowhere else in the 

world is it of such a high quality as at the 

Richtersveld deposit (96-98% quartz content) 

with associated smooth edges and parallel 

bedding. 

The formation consists of thinly bedded 

“Flagstone” quartzitic sandstone of sufficient 

strength and quality to be used for tile 

manufacturing. The difference between this 

quartzite and other dimension stone operations 

(in massive deposits) is that the bedding of this 

quartzite is of a suitable thickness and therefore 

does not require cutting to obtain the tile 

thickness desired by customers. The only cutting 

necessary is to obtain the square shape of the 

stone. Micaceous bedding planes separate the 

beds / layers of quartzite. 

 

Measured Resource (Per CPR dated March 2010) 

   UNITS  

Soil Surface Area within Drilling Grid Validity Boundary         27 500  sqm 

Average Borehole Depth               17.04  m 

In Situ Volume of Blommyn Quarry Deposit       468 585  cubm 

Minus Volume % Overburden (Topsoil & Weathered Zone)               10.72  % 

In Situ Volume of Measured Resource       418 332  cubm 

Minus Volume % Geological Loss (including <5mm layered quartzite)               35.16  % 

In Situ Volume of Product 5-80mm       271 232  cubm 

Minus Mining & Handling Loss  (29.84% of In Situ Measured Resource)               29.84  % 

TOTAL MINING PRODUCTION 5-80mm after Geo Loss & Mining Loss       146 416  cubm 

Frequency per Metre of Product 5-80mm               77.25  per m 

Ex Mining Surface Area of Viable Product Material 5-80mm  11 310 422  sqm 

Minus Handling & Cutting Loss  (40% of Ex Mining Area of Product)               40.00  % 

After Cutting Surface Area of Final Product 5-80mm – Measured 

Resource 

   6 786 253  sqm 

Percentage Surface Area of Final Product 5-25mm               91.77  % 

After Cutting Surface Area of Final Product 5-25mm    6 228 047  sqm 

Percentage Surface Area of Final Product 25-80mm                 8.23  % 

After Cutting Surface Area of Final Product 25-80mm       5558 206  sqm 

 

The competent person who prepared this report are Johan Hattingh Ph.D. (Geology) Pr.Sci.Nat. and 

Johan George Botha B.Sc. (Geology) Pr.Sci.Nat. 
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Mineral Resources Statement 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture Stone 

The metamorphosed quartzitic shales that 

make up the Picture Stone are internationally a 

very rare occurrence. The material belongs to 

the Nama Sedimentary Formation of the 

Vioolsdrift Suite of the Namaqualand 

Metamorphic Complex. The yellow – brown 

material derives its unique pattern from the 

Liesegang Rings. 

The material is only found above a certain 

contour in the Vioolsdrift area (+/-280m) and 

varies in depth from 10cm to several metres.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

With regard to extent of the deposit, the 

applicants are currently in possession of the 

valid prospecting permit for a +/- 644ha area 

south of the mining area which also contains 

good Picture Stone. It is unlikely that the Picture 

Stone extends much further than the combined 

mining and prospecting area. 

The resources estimate (unverified) is 

approximately 230,000 m3 of which 10% will be 

large sizes (longer than 2 metres) with the 

following technical characteristics: 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Mineralogical Composition of Quartzite produced at Lekkersing 

Silica content 96,5% 

Resistance to wear (Loss in mm) 0,59 Average 

Hardness: 

(USA test 8,0 on M.O.H. scale) 

7,0 on M.O.H. scale of 10 

Modulus of Rupture (Mpa) 23,0 Average 

Linear Thermal Expansion co-efficient at temperature   

20˚ C – 286˚ C, C-1 

1,59 x 10-5 

Water absorption (% mm) 0,86 

Compressive strength (Mpa) Dry 160,7 

 Wet 165,3 

Flexural strength (Mpa) Dry  18,5 

 Wet 18,1 

Freeze and Thaw test: 

Visual 

Loss in mass (% mm) 

 

No cracks 

0,50 

Chemical resistance: 

Citric Acid 

Hydrochloric Acid 

 

Satisfactory 

Satisfactory 

Information about the physical and mechanical characteristics: 

Apparent unit mass 2,313kg/m3 

Imbibition coefficient 42.4% 

Coefficient of abrasion 7.44mm 

Simple compression 120N/mm2 

Flexural strength test 19.7N/mm2 

Simple compression after 20 freeze/thaw cycles 127N/mm2 

Sliding friction wear test 3.72mm 

Impact test 21.3Kg.cm 

MOHS hardness 4 
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Corporate Governance and Code of Conduct 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 
 

The Board of Directors is firmly committed to 

promoting corporate governance and has 

implemented the recommendations as 

contained in the second King Report on 

Corporate Governance for South Africa 2002 

(“King II”), where appropriate.  In addition, the 

requirements of The Corporate Laws 

Amendment Act published on 14 December 

2007 and the King Code and Report on 

Governance for South Africa (“King III”) 

effective from 1 March 2010, as they relate to 

corporate governance and to the Company 

have been considered where appropriate.  The 

Board has continued implementing various 

aspects of compliance with King II during the 

year as more fully detailed below.  

THE BOARD 

Structure of the Board 

Bauba has a unitary board with a non-

executive Chairman.  The directors bring a 

wide range of experience, diversity, insight and 

independence of judgment on issues of 

strategy, performance, resources and 

standards of conduct to the Board.  The Board 

has a majority of non-executive directors. 

The directors of the Company are set out on 

page 17 of the Annual Report. 

Independence of the Board 

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive 

Officer are separated.  The non-executive 

directors are not appointed under service 

contracts and their remuneration is not tied to 

the Group‟s financial performance.  The  

Company has three non-executive directors, 

namely MK Diale, AM Sher and JJ Serfontein.   

 

Board responsibilities 

The Board is responsible for the strategy, 

acquisition and disinvestment policy, risk 

management, financing and corporate 

governance policies of the Group, and is 

accountable for stakeholder relations, 

protecting and enhancing the Group‟s wealth 

and resources, timely and transparent reporting 

and for acting, at all times, in the best interests 

of the Group and its shareholders.  The Board 

ensures that there is an appropriate balance of 

power and authority on the Board, such that no 

one individual or block of individuals can 

dominate the Board‟s decision taking. 

 

Appointments and re-elections of the Board 

No formal procedure exists for appointments to 

the Board or for the delegation of the functions 

of the Board.  Appointments to the Board are 

currently considered by the Board as a whole.  

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are 

responsible for reviewing the content and 

implementation of the authorised delegation of 

functions and report thereon to the Board. 

During the year under review there were no 

changes to the Board of directors. 

Pursuant to the successful completion of the 

acquisition of Bauba as detailed under 

subsequent events in the Directors‟ report, the 

Board of directors of Bauba has been 

reconstructed to include the following 

directors:

 
Name Experience 

Jonathan Best (#) (Chairman) Ex-CFO of AngloGold Ashanti 

Pine Pienaar (CEO) Ex-CEO of Mvelaphanda Resources 

Mark Rosslee (Financial Director) Ex-CFO of Braemore Resources 

Kenneth Dicks (#)  Non-executive director of Harmony Gold and Gold One International 

Sholto Dolamo (#) Former head of Lonmin Platinum`s research and development team for the 

precious metals refinery 

Dr Mathews Phosa Former Premier of Mpumalanga and Non-executive director 

(#)Independent Non-executive 

director 
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Corporate Governance and Code of Conduct 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 
 

Due to required rotation of directors, Messrs GP 

Sequeria and AM Sher will retire as directors 

and, in accordance with the provisions of the 

Company‟s article of association, be 

accepted.   

Board and committee meetings and 

attendance thereof 

The Board meets on a regular basis where 

possible, but at a minimum four times a year.  

The directors are properly briefed in respect of 

special business prior to Board meetings and 

information is timeously provided to enable 

them to give full consideration to all the issues 

being dealt with.  The directors do make further 

enquiries where necessary.  

Four Board meetings were held during the 

financial year ended 30 June 2010 and one 

after the year end until the date of this report.  

Two Audit Committee meetings have been 

held during the year and one after year end. 

No Remuneration Committee meetings were 

held during the year.  Minutes are kept of all 

Board and committee meetings.  

The Remuneration Committee, although 

constituted, has not formally met as yet.  The 

attendances of the directors as at 30 June 2010 

for the year under review, taking into account 

their dates of appointment and/or resignation, 

were as follows: 
. 

 
Director / 

Committee 

Member 

Year 

appointed 

Age % of Board 

meetings 

attended 

Number of 

meetings 

attended (4) 

% of Audit 

Committee 

meetings 

attended 

Number of 

meetings 

attended (2) 

MK Diale 20/01/2005 41 75% 3 50% 1 

AM Sher 17/04/2001 73 100% 4 100% 2 

GP Sequeira 14/05/2004 38 75% 3 - - 

JJ Serfontein 29/05/2003 47 50% 2 50% 1 

MW Rosslee 01/09/2008 48 100% 4 - - 

 
All directors, committee members and 

chairman are encouraged to attend the 

annual general meeting of the Company.  The 

auditors are required to attend the annual 

general meeting in compliance with the 
Companies Act of South Africa No 61 of 1973 as 

amended. 

 



BAUBA PLATINUM LIMITED  
(formerly Absolute Holdings Limited) 

8 

 

Corporate Governance and Code of Conduct 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 
 

Subsequent to year end and to the date of this 

report, one Board meeting and one Audit 

Committee meeting have been held and at 

both meetings all directors and members were 

present.  

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

A Remuneration Committee consisting of the 

non-executive directors has been established.  

The Committee is, inter alia, responsible for 

making recommendations to the Board, within 

agreed terms of reference, on the Group‟s 

framework of executive remuneration and its 

costs.  The Committee will strive to ensure that 

levels of remuneration are sufficient to attract 

and retain directors and senior management of 

the calibre required to ensure the successful 

running of the Group.   

CONTROLS 

The Board ensures that a sound system of 

internal controls is in place to safeguard 

stakeholders‟ interests and the Group‟s assets.  

This function is managed by the Audit 

Committee, which has been formally 

constituted and consists of non-executive 

directors and the Group Secretary.  Neither the 

Chief Executive Officer nor the Financial 

Director sit on the Committee, but both are 

invited to attend its meetings.  The Committee 

operates in accordance with written terms of 

reference as confirmed by the Board, which 

sets out its authority and duties.  The external 

auditors have free access to this Committee 

and are invited to attend all of its meetings. 

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is 

to deal with the appointment and consider 

remuneration of external auditors as well as to 

promote the overall effectiveness of corporate 

governance within the Group.  A statement of 

the Audit Committee‟s responsibilities is set out 

on page 11 of the annual report.  The Audit 

Committee has explicit authority to investigate 

any matter under its terms of reference and has 

access to all resources and information it 

requires to act on this authority. 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

The Company does not have an internal audit 

function in place but the directors are of the 

opinion that there is currently no need to 

establish this function. The external auditors 

perform a detailed audit of the records of the 

Group. Once the activities of the Group 

warrant this function, it will be outsourced to a 

suitably independent service provider. 

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDIT 

The Group‟s auditor, TAG Incorporated 

(“TAG”), performs an independent and 

objective audit on the Group‟s financial 

statements in terms of the International 

Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”).  Interim 

reports are not audited, but are discussed with 

the auditors.  The Audit Committee approves 

the audit plan and reviews the audit fees for 

the audit.  The auditors have unrestricted 

access to the Audit Committee and are invited 

to attend all Audit Committee meetings.  The 

re-appointment of the auditors is reviewed 

annually by the Audit Committee.  The Audit 

Committee has confirmed that the external 

auditors are considered to be independent 

and the external auditors have confirmed that 

none of their staff have any conflict of interest 

with regard to the Company. 

Non-audit services performed by the auditors 

were limited to tax services.  The Audit 

Committee is of the opinion that this service 

does not impair the independence of the 

auditors.   

See accounting and internal controls for the 

directors‟ responsibility and role in respect of 

the audit and accounting records.  
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Corporate Governance and Code of Conduct 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Group believes in the necessity of social 

development and its innovative involvement in 

the upliftment of historically disadvantaged 

communities and is largely involved in 

community-focused initiatives in the areas in 

which its mining activities take place. To this 

end, the Group has been directly involved in 

the Richtersveld Community in its Lekkersing 

mining project, promoting training of 

employees as well as providing for social needs 

such as medical assistance. 

The Group seeks to promote a healthy, secure 

and participative social and working 

environment with its staff, business associates 

and with key stakeholders.  The duty of being a 

responsible, caring and exemplary corporate 

citizen is considered to be an obligation – not a 

choice! 

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS 

The Group is committed to ongoing and 

effective communication with stakeholders.  It 

subscribes to a policy of open and timeous 

communication in line with JSE Limited 

guidelines, sound corporate governance and 

manages these through its investor relations 

programme. 

NON-FINANCIAL MATTERS 

Bauba subscribes to the highest ethical 

standards and behaviour in the conduct of its 

business and related activities, and requires 

total honesty and integrity from its directors and 

employees.  Bauba expects its shareholders, 

suppliers and partners to subscribe to the same 

high ethical standards.  

CLOSED AND PROHIBITED PERIODS 

The Group enforces a restricted period for 

dealing in its shares, in terms of which any 

dealings in shares by all directors and senior 

personnel is disallowed by the Board from the 

time that the reporting period has elapsed to 

the time that results are released, at any time 

that the Group is trading under cautionary  

 

 

 

announcement or if the directors are in 

possession of price sensitive information.   

COMPANY SECRETARY 

The directors all have unfettered access to the 

Company Secretary who, inter alia, is 

responsible for ensuring that proper procedures 

are followed regarding Board matters.  It 

requires a decision of the Board as a whole to 

remove the Company Secretary, should this 

become necessary.  Directors are furthermore 

entitled to ask any questions of any personnel 

and enjoy unrestricted access to all Group 

documentation, information and property. 

The Company Secretary is required to provide 

the members of the Board with guidance and 

advice regarding their responsibilities, duties 

and powers and to ensure that the Board is 

aware of all legislation relevant to or affecting 

the Group.  The Company Secretary is required 

to ensure that the Group complies with all 

applicable legislation regarding the affairs of 

the Group, including the necessary recording 

of meetings of the Board, Board committees 

and shareholders of the Group. 

SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING 

The Group is committed to high moral, ethical 

and legal standards. It expects all 

representatives of the Group to act in 

accordance with the highest standards of 

personal and professional integrity in all aspects 

of their activities and to comply with all 

applicable laws, regulations and the Group‟s 

policies. 

The Board believes that the Group has adhered 

to the ethical standards during the year under 

review. 

The overall well-being of our employees is 

regarded as very important and the Company 

encourages its employees to raise any issues 

with the executive directors.   

Furthermore, in the Company‟s office 

environment, systems aimed at reducing 

resource consumption over time are in place 

and the Company is continuously exploring 

ways in which to reduce paper, energy and 

water usage. 
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Corporate Governance and Code of Conduct 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 

EMPLOYMENT, DEVELOPMENT AND EMPLOYMENT 

EQUITY 

The Company continues to promote a culture 

that provides all employees with opportunities 

to advance to their optimal levels of career 

development. The Company upholds and 

supports the objectives of the Employment 

Equity Act and intends implementing various 

initiatives that provide opportunities for all levels 

of staff within its various developments as they 

become established. It will seek to position itself 

as an employer of choice, whilst at the same 

time enhancing its participation in making 

South Africa more internationally competitive.   

The Company‟s employment policies are 

designed to provide equal opportunities, 

without discrimination, to all employees.  

TRANSFER OFFICE 

Computershare Investor Services (Proprietary) 

Limited acts as transfer secretaries to the 

Company.   

 

 

 

 

CODE OF ETHICS 

The Board subscribes to the highest level of 

professionalism and integrity in conducting its 

business and dealing with all of its stakeholders. 

In adhering to its code of ethics, the Board is 

guided by the following broad principles: 

 Businesses should operate and compete in 

accordance with the principles of free 

enterprise; 

 Free enterprise will be constrained by the 

observance of relevant legislation and 

generally accepted principles regarding 

ethical behaviour in business; 

 Ethical behaviour is predicated on the 

concept of utmost good faith and 

characterised by integrity, reliability and a 

commitment to avoid harm; 

 Business activities will benefit all participants 

through a fair exchange of value or 

satisfaction of needs; and 

 Equivalent standards of ethical behaviour 

are expected from individuals and 

companies with whom business is 

conducted. 
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Statement of Audit Committee responsibilities  

for the year ended 30 June 2010 
 

The Audit Committee consists of the following 

non–executive directors: 

AM Sher (Chairman) 

JJ Serfontein 

MK Diale 

 

The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the 

board by performing an objective and 

independent review of the Group‟s finance 

and accounting control mechanisms. It 

exercises its functions through close liaison and 

communication with corporate management 

and the external auditors. The Committee met 

twice during the 2010 financial year. 

 

The Committee is guided by its terms of 

reference, dealing with membership, structure 

and levels of authority and has the following 

responsibilities:  

 ensuring compliance with applicable 

legislation and the requirements of 

regulatory authorities; 

 nominating for appointment a registered 

auditor who, in the opinion of the Audit 

Committee, is independent of the Group;  

 satisfying itself as to the appropriateness of 

the expertise and experience of the 

incoming financial director in accordance 

with the JSE Listings Requirements; 

 matters relating to financial accounting, 

accounting policies, reporting and 

disclosure;  

 internal and external audit policy including 

determination of fees and terms of 

engagement;  

 activities, scope, adequacy, and 

effectiveness of the internal audit function 

and audit plans;  

 review / approval of external audit plans, 

findings, problems, reports, fees and 

determination and approval of any non-

audit services that the auditor may provide 

to the Group;  

 compliance with the Code of Corporate 

Practices and Conduct; and  

 compliance with the Group‟s code of 

ethics  

The Audit Committee addressed its 

responsibilities properly in terms of the charter 

during the 2010 financial year.  In addition the 

Committee has established a policy as well as 

procedures required to the use of the external 

audit for non-audit services. One of these 

responsibilities was the assessment of the 

independence of the auditor. The committee is 

satisfied that the auditor is independent of the 

Group. No changes to the charter were 

adopted during the 2010 financial year. 

In addition, the Audit Committee is satisfied 

with the appropriateness of the expertise and 

experience of the Financial Director of the 

Group. 

Management has reviewed the financial 

statements with the Audit Committee, and the 

Audit Committee has reviewed them without 

management or external auditors being 

present.  The quality of the accounting policies 

are discussed with the external auditors.  The 

Audit Committee considers the financial 

statements of Bauba Platinum Limited to be a 

fair presentation of its financial position as at 30 

June 2010 and of the results of the operations, 

changes in equity and cash flows for the period 

then ended, in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards and the South 

African Companies Act of South Africa No 61 of 

1973 as amended (“the Companies Act”), and 

the Listings Requirements of the JSE. 

 

Chairman 
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF  

BAUBA PLATINUM LIMITED 

 

We have audited the accompanying Group annual financial statements and the annual financial statements 

of Bauba Platinum Limited which comprise the directors‟ report, the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 

June 2010, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statements of Changes in Equity and Statement of 

Cash Flows for the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

notes, as set out on pages 15 to 57.  

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements 

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Companies 

Act of South Africa No 61 of 1973 as amended (“the Companies Act”). This responsibility includes: designing, 

implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of annual 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and 

applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 

circumstances. 

Auditors’ responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether 

the annual financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

annual financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors‟ judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity‟s 

preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the entity‟s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the annual financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

the Company and Group as of 30 June 2010, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year 

then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by 

the Companies Act of South Africa No 61 of 1973 as amended and the JSE Listings Requirements.  

 

TAG Incorporated Emwil House West 

Director: Retief Smith Tijger Vallei Office Park 

Registered Auditors Silverlakes

 Pretoria 

15 September 2010 
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 

 

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 

The directors are required by the South African 

Companies Act No. 61 of 1973, as amended, to 

maintain adequate accounting records and 

are responsible for the content and integrity of 

the financial statements and related financial 

information included in this report.  It is their 

responsibility to ensure that the financial 

statements fairly represent the state of affairs of 

the Group as at the end of the financial year 

and the results of its operations and cash flows 

for the period then ended, in conformity with 

International Financial Reporting Standards.  

The external auditors are engaged to express 

an independent opinion of the financial 

statements. 

The directors acknowledge that they are 

ultimately responsible for the system of internal 

financial control established by the Group and 

place considerable importance on maintaining 

a strong control environment.  To enable the 

directors to meet these responsibilities, the 

Board sets standards for internal control aimed 

at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost 

effective manner.  The standards include the 

proper delegation of responsibilities within a 

clearly defined framework, effective 

accounting procedures and adequate 

segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable 

level of risk.  These controls are monitored 

throughout the Group and all employees are 

required to maintain the highest ethical 

standards in ensuring the Group‟s business is 

conducted in a manner that in all reasonable 

circumstances is above reproach.  The focus of 

risk management in the Group is on identifying, 

assessing, managing and monitoring all known 

forms of risk across the Group.  While operating 

risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Group 

endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that 

appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems 

and ethical behaviour are applied and 

managed within predetermined procedures 

and constraints. 

The directors are of the opinion, based on the 

information and explanations given by 

management that the system of internal  

 

 

control provides reasonable assurance that the 

financial records may be relied on for the 

preparation of the financial statements.  

However, any system of internal financial 

control can provide only reasonable and not 

absolute assurance against material 

misstatement or loss. 

The directors have reviewed the Group‟s cash 

flow forecast and the Board advises that the 

preparation of the financial statements on a 

going concern basis is appropriate. 

The audit report of TAG Incorporated is 

presented on page 12. 

APPROVAL OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The annual financial statements set out on 

pages 15 to 57, which have been prepared on 

the going concern basis, were prepared by the 

Board on the date stated below and were 

signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

 

MW Rosslee                       GP Sequeira 
Chief Executive Officer      Financial Director 

15 September 2010
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Secretary’s Statement 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 
 

The Secretary certifies that the Company has 

lodged with the Registrar of Companies, all 

such returns as are required of a public 

company, in terms of section 268 G (d) of the 

Companies Act of South Africa No 61 of 1973 

as amended, and that all such returns are true, 

correct and up to date. 

 

Arcay Client Support (Pty) Limited 

Registration Number 1998/025284/07 

Company Secretary 

15 September 2010 
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Directors’ report 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 

 

CURRENT EVENTS, NATURE OF BUSINESS AND 

FUTURE PROSPECTS 

Group Transition 

The Group has effectively completed its 

transition to a junior development Company 

with the conclusion of the Bauba Project 

acquisition which is detailed in note 22 on 

subsequent events on page 53.  

Share Consolidation 

A circular to shareholders was posted during 

the financial year, detailing a proposed 

consolidation of the share capital of the 

Company on the basis of 1 share for every 100 

existing shares held and a change in par value 

from R0.01 to R1.00.  The share consolidation 

was aimed at repositioning the Company in 

anticipation of a proposed transfer to the Main 

Board of the JSE Limited (“JSE”) under “General 

Mining” and the Company‟s transition to a 

junior miner. 

Shareholders approved the share consolidation 

at the General Meeting dated 17 February 

2010 and the finalisation of the consolidation 

was announced on 11 March 2010.  

Odd-lot Offer 

The directors of Bauba proposed the 

implementation of an odd-lot offer in order to 

reduce the substantial administration costs 

associated with the number of odd lot 

shareholdings. Fractions arising from the share 

consolidation were rounded up or down to the 

nearest whole number in accordance with the 

rounding principle whereby fractions of 0.5 and 

above were rounded up and fractions below 

0.5 were rounded down. More specifically, 

shareholders holding 950 – 999 shares were 

rounded up to 10 shares and 9 950 – 9 999 

shares were rounded to 100 shares. 

The odd-lot offer closed on 01 April 2010.  The 

purchase consideration payable by Bauba for 

the 17 996 shares acquired was R71 984. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The number of shareholders was reduced by 

907 representing approximately 0.36% of the 

total number of shares held by these 

shareholders registered in the register at the 

opening of the odd-lot offer.  

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The results are more fully set out in the annual 

financial statements.  The accounting policies 

adopted have been consistently applied in all 

material respects, with International Financial 

Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), the Companies 

Act of South Africa No 61 of 1973 as amended 

and the JSE Listings Requirements.   

At a General meeting of shareholders held on 

17 February 2010 shareholders approved the 

necessary resolutions whereby:  the share 

capital of Absolute will be consolidated on the 

basis of 1-for-100 ordinary shares, from an 

authorised share capital of 2 500 000 000 

ordinary shares of R0.01 each to 25 000 000 

ordinary shares of R1.00 each and an issued 

share capital of 1 601 184 758 ordinary shares of 

R0.01 each to 16 011 854 ordinary shares of 

R1.00 each. 

Following the above mentioned share 

consolidation, the Company made an odd-lot 

offer at an offer price of R4.00 (four) per share 

post consolidation, which equated to 4 (four) 

cents per share (pre-consolidation), which was 

calculated using the volume weighted 

average traded price of Bauba on the JSE over 

the five trading days commencing on 

16 November 2009 and ending on 23 

November 2009, plus a premium of 8.63%.   

A commentary on these results is in included in 

the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer‟s 

report. 
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Directors’ report 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 

GOING CONCERN 

The directors have continued to adopt the 

„going concern‟ basis for the preparation of the 

financial statements. As is common with many 

junior mining companies, the Company raises 

money resources for exploration and capital 

projects as and when required. However, the 

availability of these resources is dependent on 

new shareholder funding and revenue streams 

from investments, and there can be no 

certainty in relation to these matters. There can 

be no assurance that the Group‟s projects will 

be fully developed in accordance with current 

plans or completed on time or to budget. 

Future work on the development of these 

projects, the levels of production and financial 

returns arising there from may be adversely 

affected by factors outside the control of the 

Group. 

DIVIDENDS PAID AND RECOMMENDED  

No dividends were paid or declared during the 

accounting period under review and none are 

recommended at this stage (2009: nil). 

DIRECTORS 

Composition of the Board of Directors 

Pursuant to conclusion of the acquisition by 

Bauba of an effective 60% controlling interest in 

the Bauba project, transforming the Company 

into a junior miner and explorer with its main 

focus on the development of a potentially  

 

 

 

large PGM resource base, there was a change 

in control, together with a restructuring of the 

Board of Directors.   

GP Sequeira and MK Diale, representatives of 

Calulo Resources (Proprietary) Limited, as well 

as AM Sher and JJ Serfontein will remain as 

directors until the upcoming General meeting.  

No payment would be made to these directors 

in relation to their resignations. P Pienaar has 

been appointed as CEO to complement the 

management team of MW Rosslee, whose 

appointment will change to Financial Director.   

J Best will be appointed as Chairman and 

Messrs K Dicks and S Dolamo as independent 

non-executive directors, all of whom have 

extensive experience in the mining industry. Dr 

M Phosa will be appointed as a non-executive 

director and will represent the major 

shareholders. 

However, prior to the above mentioned 

changes which are subject to the completion 

of the acquisition of Bauba, the composition of 

the Board of Directors as at the date of posting 

of this annual report is two executive directors 

and three non-executive directors.  These 

directors are drawn from diverse backgrounds 

and bring a wide range of experience, insight 

and professional skills to the board. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BAUBA PLATINUM LIMITED  
(formerly Absolute Holdings Limited) 

17 

 

Directors’ report 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 
 

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2010 and to the date of this report 

was as follow: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
* Non-executive    # Independent 

 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE 

COMPANY 

The current directors‟ interests in the ordinary 

share capital of the Company at 30 June 2010 

and to the date of this report are detailed 

below. The directors‟ emoluments for the 

financial year ended 30 June 2010 are set out 

in note 25.  The 2010 directors‟ interests are as 

at 30 June 2010 which are post the share 

consolidation.  The Remuneration Committee, 

which comprises non-executive directors, is 

responsible for determining the remuneration  

and conditions of employment of the executive 

directors.  Mr AM Sher and Mr JJ Serfontein 

have been appointed to the Remuneration 

Committee and a mandate has been 

adopted.  Non-executive directors will be paid 

appropriate fees and out of pocket expenses.  

Directors‟ fees will be reviewed annually. 

Directors‟ interests in contracts are available for 

inspection at the registered office of the 

Company.

  

30 June 2010 Beneficially Held Total Shares Total % 

 Direct Indirect  

MK Diale* - 930 394 930 394 5.8% 

MW Rosslee - - - - 

GP Sequeira - 232 599 232 599 1.5% 

AM Sher* 16 667 - 16 667 0.1% 

JJ Serfontein* 20 000 244 841 264 841 1.7% 

TOTAL 36 667 1 407 834 1 444 501 9.1% 

    

30 June 2009 Restated    

MK Diale* - 925 834 925 834 6.6% 

MW Rosslee - - - - 

GP Sequeira - 231 459 231 459 1.7% 

AM Sher* 16 667 - 16 667 0.1% 

JJ Serfontein* 225 000 243 640 468 640 3.3% 

TOTAL 241 667 1 400 933 1 642 600 11.7% 

Directors and designation Date of appointment Date of resignation ‡/retirement † 

MK Diale* 20 January 2005 19 October 2010 ‡ 

GP Sequeira 14 May 2004 19 October 2010 † 
AM Sher * 17 April 2001 19 October 2010 † 
MW Rosslee 01 September 2008  

JJ Serfontein * 29 May 2003 19 October 2010 ‡ 

JG Best 17 September 2010  

PC Pienaar 17 September 2010  

KV Dicks*# 17 September 2010  

SM Dolamo*# 17 September 2010  

NM Phosa* 17 September 2010  
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Directors’ report 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 

The remuneration package of MW Rosslee 

provides for the allocation of 300 000 shares 

under the Company‟s share incentive scheme, 

which scheme was approved by shareholders 

in a general meeting on 31 March 2009.  The 

shares remain unissued at the date of this 

annual report as the scheme has still to be 

registered with the Master of the High Court. 

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING 

Shareholders holding more than 5% of the 

issued shares of the Company as at 30 June 

2010 are as follows: 

 

Shareholder Number of shares 
Percentage 

holding 

Calulo Resources (Pty) 
Ltd 4 896 811 30.6% 

Tucker Boys Trust 1 865 149 11.7% 

RAB Investment Trust 944 798 5.9% 
Discount Toy Cash and 
Carry CC 822 500 5.1% 

Total  8 529 258 53.3% 

 

The analysis of shareholders, between public 

and non-public, is set out on page 58 of the 

annual report.   

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS 

On 29 July 2009, the Company announced the 

successful completion of the acquisition of a 

49% (subsequently reduced to 36.5% as 

detailed in note 9) stake in Dikopane NN Mining 

(Proprietary) Limited for a cash consideration of 

R500 000 and 8 333 333 shares (prior to the 

share consolidation). The acquisition was in line 

with Bauba‟s stated strategy of transforming 

itself into a resources exploration and 

development Company.   

Dikopane was granted a prospecting right over 

various farms located in the Northern part of 

the Free State Province, approximately 26km  

 

 

 

south-southeast of Sasolburg and 28km north of 

Heilbron. This Prospecting Right was secured  

over 14,500 hectares in the Vereeniging – 

Sasolburg coalfields. The acquisition of the 

shareholding in Dikopane presented Bauba 

with an opportunity to develop a prospective 

coal exploration project in line with the 

Company‟s previously stated strategy. 

The Company successfully placed 189 135 135 

ordinary shares (“the placed shares”) (prior to 

the share consolidation), equating to 13.47 per 

cent of the Company‟s issued share capital, 

thereby raising approximately R7 million. The 

Company applied the proceeds to funding 

exploration and resource definition on its new 

coal project at Sasolburg and the limestone 

projects in the Eastern and Western Cape.  

Shareholders are referred to subsequent events 

for acquisitions after the year end. 

AUDITORS 

TAG Incorporated is the auditor for the holding 

Company as well as the subsidiaries.  The Audit 

Committee is satisfied as to the independence 

of the auditors. 

 SPONSOR 

The sponsor of the Company is Arcay Moela 

Sponsors (Proprietary) Limited.  

COMPANY SECRETARY 

 All the directors have access to the advice and 

services of the Company Secretary.  The Board 

is of the opinion that the management 

representing the Company Secretary has the 

requisite attributes, experience and 

qualifications to fulfil its commitments 

effectively.  Arcay Client Support (Proprietary) 

Limited remains in office as Company 

Secretary. 

LITIGATION 

There is no major litigation pending against the 

Company or its subsidiaries. 
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Directors’ report 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 

SHARE CAPITAL AND ISSUE OF SHARES 

A total of 1 974 685 shares (after the share 

consolidation) have been issued for the period 

under review in relation to new issues for cash 

to fund ongoing exploration and part of the 

acquisition of the Company‟s interest in 

Dikopane NN Mining (Pty) Ltd.  

The authorised and issued share capital of the 

Company at 30 June 2010 is set out in note 15 

to the financial statements.  As at 30 June 2010 

there were 16 011 854 ordinary issued shares of 

one rand each (after the share consolidation) 

and 8 988 146 unissued ordinary shares.   

Subsequent to 30 June 2010, the following 

shares have been issued: 

 8 005 029 ordinary shares to public 

shareholders  at an issue price of R3.10 

each;  

 234 480 ordinary shares to related parties, 

namely Arcay Client Support (Proprietary) 

Limited at an issue price of R3.14 each in 

settlement of an outstanding fee unrelated 

to the circular issued to shareholders dated 

17 May 2010; and 

 68 124 600 vendor shares were issued to 

Bauba A Hlabirwa Mining Investments 

(Proprietary) Limited at R5.00 per share for 

the acquisition of an effective 60% 

participation in Bauba. 

The shareholders will be asked to place the 

unissued ordinary shares under the control of 

the directors at the forthcoming annual 

general meeting. 

 SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS 

Special resolutions passed and approved at 

the General meeting dated 17 February 2010 

during the year under review were as follows: 

 The Company‟s authorised share capital be 

consolidated from 2 500 000 000 ordinary 

shares of R0.01 each to 25 000 000 ordinary 

shares of R1.00 each and an issued share 

capital of 1 601 184 758 ordinary shares of 

R0.01 each to 16 011 848 ordinary shares of 

R1.00, be approved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 The articles of association of the Company 

were amended by the inclusion of a new 

article regarding the odd-lot offer. 

 The Company was authorised to 

repurchase, at the offer price, the shares of 

those odd-lot holders who elected to sell 

their odd-lot holding to the Company or 

who do not make an election, which shares 

will be cancelled, delisted and restored to 

the status of authorised shares. 

Subsequent to year end as approved at the 

General meeting on 07 June 2010, the 

following special resolutions have been passed: 

 The authorised share capital of the 

Company was increased from R25 000 000 

comprising 25 000 000 ordinary shares of 

R1.00 each through the creation of 

175 000 000 new shares of R1.00 each to 

R200 000 000 comprising 200 000 000 shares 

of R1.00 each. 

 The Company repurchase and cancel up to 

37 033 200 (thirty seven million, thirty three 

thousand, two hundred) shares of R1.00 

each in terms of the claw back, in the event 

that any or both of the prospecting rights 

held by Bauba on the farms in the Southern 

Cluster, namely Groot Vygenboom 284KT 

and Genokakop 285KT are overturned or 

withdrawn, for no consideration or a 

maximum consideration of R1.00 in terms of 

the Bauba acquisition agreement, which 

repurchase will have the effect of the 

voiding of the issue of such shares ab initio, 

be and is hereby approved. 

 The name of the Company has been 

changed from Absolute Holdings Limited to 

Bauba Platinum Limited. 

MEDIA LIAISON 

The Company advised that Mr Julian Gwillam 

acts as media liaison and shareholder relations 

officer for the Group.  Interested parties are 

encouraged to contact him via e-mail on 

julian@aprio.co.za for any assistance. 
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Directors’ report 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME 

The Scheme is intended as an incentive to 

employees to promote the continued growth of 

the Company and its subsidiaries by giving them 

an opportunity to acquire Ordinary Shares or 

rights therein. 

The Company may, from time to time, offer the 

Trust the opportunity to subscribe for shares, the 

number of which shares, when added to the 

number of Scheme Shares then issued to the 

Trust under the Deed (while they remain Scheme 

Shares), do not exceed the Scheme Allocation 

being a maximum of 10% of the issued share 

capital. Such shares shall be offered for 

subscription at the purchase price. 

Notwithstanding the provisions regarding the 

calculation of the Purchase Price, the 

shareholders of the Company may, from time to 

time, in a General meeting, reserve unissued 

shares at par value or such other value as 

determined by the shareholders and the Listings 

Requirements and place them under the control 

of the directors for the purposes of the Scheme, 

and the directors shall be entitled to allot and 

issue such further shares to the Trust at par value 

or such other value as is determined by the 

shareholders. 

Employees shall be eligible to, and shall 

participate in, the Scheme only if and to the 

extent that offers are made to and are 

accepted by them.  

The purchase or subscription price of shares 

acquired by the Trust, the costs incurred by the 

Trust in the acquisition thereof, any duties 

payable by the Trust upon the transfer thereof to 

the Participant and any monies required to 

effect payment of any previous borrowings by 

 

 

 

 

the Trustees, as for the proper execution of their 

duties in terms hereof, will be met out of 

 the Trust‟s own resources, if any; and/or 

 loans to be made to the Trust by Group 

companies in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 38(2)b) of the Act; 

and/or 

 loans by third parties to the Trust to be 

procured by the directors or the Trustees 

upon such terms as the directors or the 

Trustees are able to arrange; and/or as the 

directors may from time to time direct. 

The Trustees will not benefit from the Scheme. 

The maximum number of Scheme Shares in 

respect whereof any one Offeree shall be 

entitled to accept an Offer pursuant to the 

Trust shall not exceed such number of Shares as 

may be determined from time to time by the 

Directors, in consultation with the JSE, which 

number of shares shall not exceed 600 000 (six 

hundred thousand) of the issued Ordinary 

Shares of the Company: provided that no such 

maximum imposed shall be less, in respect of 

any Participant, than the number of shares in 

respect of which such Participant has already 

accepted Offers prior to that date. 

Purchase Price means in respect of each 

Scheme Share, an amount calculated in 

accordance with the following formula 

 

A = B x C 

Where: 

A = the Purchase Price to be 

determined; 

B = > 90% (ninety percent); and 

C = 30 day VWAP of an Ordinary Share 
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Directors’ report 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  

Successful conclusion and implementation of 

the Bauba Acquisition 

On 17 May 2010, a circular to shareholders was 

posted detailing the binding agreement the 

Company concluded with Hlabirwa Mining 

Investments (Proprietary) Limited (“Hlabirwa”), 

Highland Trading Investments Limited 

(“Highland”) and the shareholders of Ndarama 

Mineral Resources (Proprietary) Limited (“the 

NMR Shareholders”), to acquire an effective 

60% direct and indirect participation in Bauba 

A Hlabirwa Mining Investments (Proprietary) 

Limited.  

On 21 July 2010, the Board of Directors of the 

Company confirmed that all the conditions 

precedent had been met for the successful 

conclusion of the above Bauba transaction.  

The special resolutions approved at the 

General meeting of shareholders on 07 June 

2010, which included, inter alia, the change of 

the Company‟s name to Bauba Platinum 

Limited, the increase in authorised share capital 

and the repurchase of shares, were successfully 

registered with CIPRO.   

The following Board appointments took place 

after the successful completion of the Bauba 

acquisition:  

 
Mr  JG Best  Independent Non Executive 

Chairman 

Mr  PC Pienaar  Chief Executive Officer;  

Dr   NM Phosa  Non Executive Director; 

Mr  KV Dicks  Independent Non Executive 

Director;  

Mr  SM Dolamo  Independent Non Executive 

Director. 

 

The transaction provides Bauba with the 

potential to create a formidable and 

sustainable force in the junior South African 

PGM mining and exploration sector, and the 

opportunity to be ideally positioned to 

participate in further sector consolidation. 

Furthermore, a value adding relationship with 

the Bapedi Nation, enhanced through the 

retention of their 40% participation in the Bauba  

 

 

 

Project, will be able to contribute to the 

project‟s development and thereby increase 

the involvement  by Historically Disadvantaged 

South Africans (“HDSA`s”) in the PGM mining 

sector.  

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES  

At 30 June 2010 the Group has four employees 

(30 June 2009: 78) and the Company has four 

employees (30 June 2009: 3). 
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

   Group  Company 

          

   30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

          

 
Note 

 
R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

          

Continuing operations 

Revenue  2 

 

2 097  

 

956  2 697  

 

1 556 

General and administrative expenses   (8 069)  (6 918)  (8 369)  (7 515) 

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries 10,11  -  -  (23 945)  -  

Loss on disposal of subsidiary   -  -  -  (2 912) 

Loss from operations 3  (5 972)  (5 962)  (29 617)  (8 871) 

Finance charges 4  (100)  (42)  (2 312)  (693) 

Interest income   -  14  1 046  666 

Loss before taxation    (6 072)  (5 990)  (30 883)  (8 898) 

Taxation 5  -  -  -  - 

Loss for the year from continuing operations   (6 072)  (5 990)  (30 883)  (8 898) 

Discontinued operations          

Loss from discontinued operations 
 

7.2  (19 700)  

 

(2 234)  -  

 

- 

Loss for the year   (25 772)  (8 224)  (30 883)  (8 898) 

          

Other comprehensive income          

Fair value loss of available for sale financial 

assets 8 

 

(4 000)  -  (4 000)  - 

Total comprehensive income for the year  
 

(29 772)  (8 224)  (34 883)  (8 898) 

Basic loss per share (cents) 19 
 

(164.5)  (68.9)     

          

Basic loss per share from continuing 

operations (cents) 19 

 

(38.8)  (50.2)     

Basic loss per share from discontinued 

operations (cents) 19 

 

(125.7)  (18.7)     

All comparative figures have been restated to give effect to the share consolidation 

referred to in note 15 as well as the impact of discontinued operations.     
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
At 30 June 2010 

 
   Group  Company 

   30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 Note  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

Assets          

Non-current assets  
 

68  46 394  68  54 070 

Property, plant and equipment 6  68  25 987  68  28 

Investments in financial assets 8  -  20 000  -  20 000 

Investment in associated company 9  -  -  -  - 

Investments in subsidiaries 10  -  -  -  20 000 

Long term receivables   -  407  -  407 

Loans to Group companies 11  -  -  -  13 635 

          

Current assets   3 648  3 455  3 648  417 

Inventories 12 
 -  2 015  -  - 

Trade and other receivables 13  3 648  985  3 648  417 

Short term loan receivable 14  -  142  -  - 

Cash and cash equivalents 20.3  -  313  -  - 

 

Non current assets and disposal group classified 

as held for sale 
 

7 

 

32 591  -  30 859  - 

          

Total assets   36 307  49 849  34 575  54 487 

          

Equity and liabilities          

Equity  
 

1 491  24 115  2 694  30 429 

Share capital 15  16 012  14 037  16 012  14 037 

Share premium 15  112 062  106 889  112 062  106 889 

Other components of equity   (4 000)  -  (4 000)  - 

Retained losses   (122 583)  (96 811)  (121 380)  (90 497) 

          

Non-current liabilities   -  18 138  -  17 526 

Other financial liabilities 16  -  17 616  -  17 526 

Rehabilitation liability 17  -  522  -  - 

          

Current liabilities   9 381  7 596  9 381  6 532 

Trade and other payables 18  7 374  4 199  7 374  3 135 

Other financial liabilities 16   2 007  521  2 007  521 

Bank overdraft 20.3  -  2 876  -  2 876 

Liabilities associated with the disposal group  

classified as held for sale 
 

7 

 

25 435  -  22 500  - 
          

Total liabilities 
  

34 816  25 734  31 881  24 058 

 
  

       

Total equity and liabilities   36 307  49 849  34 575  54 487 
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Statements of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 

 

Group 

 

 

Share 

capital  

 

 

Share 

premium 

 Fair value 

of 

available 

for sale 

assets  

Retained 

losses  

 

 

Total 

 
R 000’s  R 000’s  R 000’s  R 000’s  R 000’s 

Balance at 30 June 2008 8 563  80 769  -  (88 587)  745 

Shares issued 5 474  27 367  -  -  32 841 

Costs offset against share premium -  (1 247)  -  -  (1 247) 

Total comprehensive income for 

the year -  - 

 

-  (8 224)  (8 224) 

Balance at 30 June 2009 14 037  106 889  -  (96 811)  24 115 

Shares issued 1 975  5 523  -  -  7 498 

Costs offset against share premium -  (350)  -  -  (350) 

Total comprehensive income for 

the year    

 

(4 000)  (25 772)  (29 772) 

Loss for the year -  -  -  (25 772)  (25 772) 

Fair value loss on available or sale 

financial assets -  - 

 

(4 000)  -  (4 000) 

          

Balance at 30 June 2010 16 012  112 062  (4 000)  (122 583)  1 491 

Company 

Share 

capi

tal  

Share 

premium 

 Fair value 

of 

available 

for sale 

assets  

Retained 

losses  Total 

 R 000’s  R 000’s  -  R 000’s  R 000’s 

Balance at 30 June 2008 8 563  80 769  -  (81 599)  7 733 

Shares issued 5 474  27 367  -  -  32 841 

Costs offset against share premium -  (1 247)  -  -  (1 247) 

Total comprehensive income for 

the year -  - 

 - 

 (8 898)  (8 898) 

Balance at 30 June 2009 14 037  106 889  -  (90 497)  30 429 

Shares issued 1 975  5 523  -  -  7 498 

Costs offset against share premium -  (350)  -  -  (350) 

Total comprehensive income for 

the year -  -  (4 000)  (30 883)  (34 883) 

Loss for the year -  -  -  (30 883)  (30 883) 

Fair value loss on available or sale 

financial assets -  - 

  

(4 000)  -  (4 000) 

          

Balance at 30 June 2010 16 012  112 062  (4 000)  (121 380)  2 694 
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Consolidated Statement of Cash flow 
for the year ended 30 June 2009 

 

  Group  Company 

  30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 Note R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

Net cash outflow from operating activities  (5 277)  ( 7 658)  (5 512)  (3 795) 

Cash utilised in operations 20.1 (2 987)  (7669)  (4 246)  (3 768) 

Interest paid  (2 321)  (44)  (2 312)  (693) 

Interest income  31  55  1 046  666 

         

         

Net cash (outflow) / inflow from investing activities  (4 990)  (5 092)  (4 720)  (9 807) 

Loans advanced to subsidiaries  -  -  (3 660)  (9 773) 

Acquisition of investments in associates 
 

 (1 010)  (157)  (1010)  - 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (3 980)  (4 935)  (50)  (34) 

         

Net cash inflow from financing activities  10 052  14 721  10 052  10 695 

Proceeds from issue of shares  6 998  204  6 998  204 

Costs associated with issue of shares  (350)  (1 247)  (350)  (1 247) 

Proceeds from long-term borrowings  1 918  15 262  1 918  15 312 

Advances of short-term borrowings  -  (19)  -  - 

Repayment of short–term borrowings  (521)  -  (521)  - 

Advances of short–term borrowings  2007  521  2 007  521 

(Repayment) / Advance of loans from subsidiaries  -  -  -  (4 095) 

         

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents  (215)  1 971  (180)  (2 907) 

Cash transferred to disposal group held for sale  2 778  -  3 056   

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  (2 563)  (4 534)  (2 876)  31  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 20.2 -  (2 563)  -  (2 876) 
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Notes to the financial statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2010 

 

1. Accounting Policies 

Significant accounting policies 

Bauba Platinum Limited is a Company domiciled 

in the Republic of South Africa. The consolidated 

financial statements for the year ended 30 June 

2010 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries 

(together referred to as the “Group”) and the 

Group‟s interest in associates. 

Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards,  

 

 

the Companies Act of South Africa No 61 of 

1973 as amended (“the Companies Act”) and 

its interpretations issued by the International 

Accounting Standards Board (IASB).  

At the date of authorisation of these annual 

financial statements, the following Standards 

and Interpretations were in issue but not yet 

effective and have therefore not been 

applied:  

 

 

Standard, details of amendment and Interpretations Effective date 

IFRS 3 Business Combinations  

 Amendments to transition requirements for contingent consideration from a 

business combination that occurred before the effective date of the revised IFRS  

 Clarification on the measurement of non-controlling interests  

 Additional guidance provided on un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-

based payment awards 

1 Jan 2011 

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures  

 Amendment clarifies the intended interaction between qualitative and 

quantitative disclosures of the nature and extent of risks arising from financial 

instruments and removed some disclosure items which were seen to be 

superfluous or misleading  

1 Jan 2011 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments  

 New standard that forms the first part of a three-part project to replace IAS 39 

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement  

1 Jan 2013 

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements  

 Clarification of statement of changes in equity  
1 Jan 2011 

 

Standard, details of amendment and Interpretations 

Effective 

date 

 

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments  1 July 2010  

 

These standards will be adopted on their effective date and the potential effect of these standards, 

where applicable, is not likely to be material. 

Basis of preparation and Presentation of 

Annual Financial Statements 

The annual financial statements are prepared on 

the historical cost basis except for the following 

assets and liabilities which are stated at their fair 

value: financial instruments and investment 

property. 

 Non-current assets and disposal groups held for 

sale are stated at the lower of the carrying 

amount and fair value less costs to sell. 

The preparation of financial statements in 

conformity with IFRS requires management to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions 

that affect the application of policies and 

reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 

income and expenses.  
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Notes to the financial statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 
 

Basis of preparation and Presentation of 

Annual Financial Statements (continued) 

The estimates and associated assumptions are 

based on historical experience and various other 

factors that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances, the results of which 

form the basis of making the judgements about 

carrying values of assets and liabilities that are 

not readily apparent from other sources. Actual 

results may differ from these estimates. 

In particular, information about significant areas 

of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements 

in applying accounting policies that have the 

most significant effect on the amount recognised 

in the financial statements are described in the 

following notes: 

 Measurement of depreciation and 

amortisation of property, plant and 

equipment 

 Measurement of provision for closure and 

restoration costs 

 Determination of fair values 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are 

reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognised in the 

period in which the estimate is revised if the 

revision affects only that period, or in the period 

of the revision and future periods if the revision 

affects both current and future periods. 

The accounting policies are consistent with the 

previous period and have been applied 

consistently by Group entities. 

The financial statements are prepared on the 

going concern as the projected cash flows of the 

Group are sufficient to meet its continuing 

obligations for the next 12 months. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are 

reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognised in the 

period in which the estimate is revised and in any 

future periods affected. 

Functional and presentation currency 
These consolidated financial statements are 

presented in South African Rand (ZAR), which is 

the Company‟s functional currency. All  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

information presented in South African Rand has 

been rounded to the nearest thousand. 

Trade Receivables 

The Group assesses its trade receivables for 

impairment at each statement of financial 

position date.  In determining whether an 

impairment loss should be recorded in the 

statement of comprehensive income, the Group 

makes judgements as to whether there is 

observable data indicating a measurable 

decrease in the estimated future cash flows from 

a financial asset. 

Fair value estimates 

The fair value of financial instruments traded in 

active markets (such as trading and available-

for-sale securities) is based on quoted market 

prices at the statement of financial position date.  

The quoted market prices used for financial assets 

held by the Group is the current trading prices. 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not 

traded in an active market (for example, over-

the-counter derivatives) is determined by using 

valuation techniques.  The Group uses the net 

assets value method. 

The carrying value less impairment provision of 

trade receivables and payables are assumed to 

approximate their fair values.  The fair value of 

financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is 

estimated by discounting the future contractual 

cash flows at the current market interest rate that 

is available to the Group for similar financial 

instruments. 

Expected manner of realisation of deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided for on the fair value 

adjustments of investment properties based on 

the expected manner of recovery, i.e. sale or 

use.  This manner of recovery affects the rate 

used to determine the deferred tax liability. 

Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements requires 

management to make judgements, estimates 

and assumptions that affect the application of 

accounting policies and the reported amounts of 

assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 

results may differ from these estimates. 
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Notes to the financial statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 

Taxation 

Judgement is required in determining the 

provision for income taxes due to the complexity 

of legislation.  There are many transactions and 

calculations for which the ultimate tax 

determination is uncertain during the ordinary 

course of business.  The Group recognises 

liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on 

estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.  

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is 

different from the amounts that were initially 

recorded, such differences will impact the 

income tax and deferred tax provisions in the 

period in which such determination is made. 

The Group recognises the net future tax benefit 

related to deferred income tax assets to the 

extent that it is probable that the deductible 

temporary differences will reverse in the 

foreseeable future.  Assessing the recoverability 

of deferred income tax assets requires the Group 

to make significant estimates related to 

expectations of future taxable income.  Estimates 

of future taxable income are based on forecast 

cash flows from operations and the application 

of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction.  To the 

extent that future cash flows and taxable income 

differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the 

Group to realise the net deferred tax assets 

recorded at the statement of financial position 

date could be impacted. 

Share options based payments 

The Group issued equity-settled share-based 

payments to an employee. Equity-settled share-

based payments are measured at fair value 

(excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting 

conditions) at the date of grant. The fair value 

determined at the grant date of the equity-settled 

share-based payments is expensed as services are 

rendered over the vesting period, based on the 

Group‟s estimate of the shares that will eventually 

vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market 

based vesting conditions. Fair value is measured 

using the black scholes pricing model. The 

expected life used in the model has been 

adjusted, based on management‟s best estimate, 

for the effects of non-transferability, exercise 

restrictions and behavioural considerations. 

 

Basis of consolidation 

Subsidiaries are entities, including special purpose 

entities, controlled by the Group. Control exists 

when the Group has the power, directly or 

indirectly, to govern the financial and operating 

policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from 

its activities. In assessing control, potential voting 

rights that presently are exercisable or convertible 

are taken into account. The financial statements 

of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated 

financial statements from the date that control 

commences until the date the control ceases. 

Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains 

and losses or income and expenses arising from 

intra-group transactions, are eliminated in 

preparing the consolidated financial statements. 

Business combinations 

Acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses are 

accounted for using the acquisition method.  The 

cost of the business combination is measured as 

the aggregate of the fair values of assets given, 

liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity 

instruments issued by the Group in exchange for 

control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly 

attributable to the business combination.  The 

acquiree‟s identifiable assets, liabilities and 

contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for 

recognition under IFRS 3 Business Combinations, 

are recognised at their fair values at the 

acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or 

disposal groups) that are classified as held for 

sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets 

Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which 

are recognised and measured at fair value less 

costs to sell. 

Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. 

The financial statements of subsidiaries are 

included in the consolidated financial statements 

from the date that control commences until the 

date that control ceases. The accounting policies 

of subsidiaries have been changed when 

necessary to align them with the policies adopted 

by the Group. 
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Notes to the financial statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 

Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

Inter-group balances and any unrealised gains 

and losses or income and expenses arising from 

inter-group transactions are eliminated in 

preparing the financial statements. Unrealised 

gains arising from transactions with equity 

accounted investee are eliminated against the 

investment to the extent of the Group‟s interest in 

the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in 

the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the 

extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 

Equity accounted investee 

An equity accounted investee is an entity in 

which the Group has an equity interest and over 

which it has the ability to exercise significant 

influence „but not control‟ over their financial 

and operating policies. Associates are 

accounted for using the equity method and are 

initially measured at cost. Those investments that 

are classified as held for sale are not equity 

accounted for IAS 28 par 13 but are accounted 

for in terms of IFRS 5. 

Goodwill 

At the date of acquiring a subsidiary undertaking 

or an equity investee undertaking, fair values are 

attributable to the acquired identifiable assets, 

liabilities and contingent liabilities. Goodwill, which 

represents the difference between the fair value 

of the purchase consideration and the acquired 

interest in the fair value of assets, is subject to 

annual impairment testing. Goodwill is allocated 

to cash generating units for purposes of 

impairment testing. Impairment write-downs on 

goodwill may not be reversed. 

If, after reassessment, the Group‟s interest in the 

net fair value of the acquiree‟s identifiable assets, 

liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the 

cost of the business combination, the excess is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

Foreign currency 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated 

at the foreign exchange spot rate at the date of 

the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies at the 

statement of financial position date are 

translated into Rands at the foreign exchange 

spot rate at that date. Foreign exchange 

differences arising on transactions are recognised 

in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities 

that are measured in terms of historical cost in a  

 

 

 

 

 

foreign currency are translated using the spot 

exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  

Financial instruments 

Financial instruments carried on the statement of 

financial position include cash and bank 

balances, investments, receivables, trade 

payables, loans and borrowings.  The particular 

recognition methods adopted are disclosed in 

the individual policy statements associated with 

each item. 

Initial recognition 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are 

recognised on the statement of financial position 

when the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instruments. 

The Group classifies financial instruments and their 

component parts, on initial recognition, as a 

financial asset, a financial liability or an equity 

instrument in accordance with the substance of 

the contractual arrangement. 

Fair value determination 

The fair values or amortised cost of quoted 

investments are based on current trading prices.  

If the market for a financial asset is not active 

(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes 

fair value or amortised cost by using valuation 

techniques.  These include the use of recent 

arm‟s length transactions, reference to other 

instruments that are substantially the same, 

discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing 

models making maximum use of market inputs 

and relying as little as possible on entity-specific 

inputs. 

Measurement 

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair 

value or amortised cost, net of directly 

attributable transaction costs. The only exception 

to these financial instruments classified at fair 

value or amortised cost through profit or loss in 

which case these transaction costs are expensed 

immediately. Subsequent to initial recognition 

these instruments are measured as set out below. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on 

hand and demand deposits and other short-term 

highly liquid investments that are readily 

convertible to a known amount of cash and are 

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

These are initially and subsequently recorded at 

fair value. 
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Notes to the financial statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 

Financial Instruments (continued) 

Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables are classified as loans and 

receivables and measured at amortised cost.  

Appropriate allowances for estimated 

irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or 

loss when there is objective evidence that the 

asset is impaired. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised subsequently at 

amortised cost, namely original debt less 

principal payments and amortisations, except for 

derivatives, which are subsequently measured at 

fair value. 

Loans to/(from) Group companies 

These include loans to subsidiaries and 

subsequently these loans are measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method. 

On loans receivable, an impairment loss is 

recognised in profit or loss when there is objective 

evidence that it is impaired. The impairment is 

measured as the difference between the 

investment‟s carrying amount and the present 

value of estimated future cash flows discounted 

at the effective interest rate computed at initial 

recognition. 

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent 

periods when an increase in the investment‟s 

recoverable amount can be related objectively 

to an event occurring after the impairment was 

recognised, subject to the restriction that the 

carrying amount of the investment at the date 

the impairment is reversed does not exceed what 

the amortised cost would have been had the 

impairment not been recognised. 

Derivative instruments 

Derivative financial instruments consisting of 

forward exchange contracts are initially 

measured at fair value on the contract date and 

are re-measured to fair value at subsequent 

reporting dates.  Fair value is based on the value 

of equity instruments at statement of financial 

position date. 

 

Gains and losses on subsequent measurement 

Gains and losses arising from a change in the fair 

value of financial instruments that are not part of 

a hedging relationship are included in profit or 

loss in the period in which the change arises. 

Gains and losses from measuring the hedging 

instruments relating to a fair value hedge at fair 

value are recognised immediately in net profit or 

loss. 

Gains and losses from re-measuring the hedging 

instruments relating to a cash flow hedge to fair 

value are initially recognised directly in other 

comprehensive income. If the hedged firm 

commitment or forecast transaction results in the 

recognition of an asset or liability, the cumulative 

amount recognised in equity up to the 

transaction date is adjusted against the initial 

measurement of the asset or liability. For other 

cash flow hedges, the cumulative amount 

recognised in equity is included in net profit or 

loss in the period when the commitment or 

forecast transaction affects profit or loss. 

Where the hedging instrument or hedge 

relationship is terminated but the hedged 

transaction is still expected to occur, the 

cumulative unrealised gain or loss at that point 

remains in equity and is recognised in 

accordance with the above policy when the 

truncation occurs. If the hedged transaction is no 

longer expected to occur, the cumulative 

unrealised gain or loss is recognised in the 

statement of comprehensive income 

immediately. 

Trade and other payables 

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value 

less transaction costs and are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest rate method. 

Bank overdraft and borrowings 

Bank overdrafts and borrowing are initially 

measured at fair value less transaction costs and 

are subsequently measured at amortised cost 

using the effective interest rate method. 
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Property, plant and equipment 

Owned assets 

Items of property, plant and equipment are 

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 

and impairment losses (see note 7). Certain items 

of property, plant and equipment that have 

been revalued to fair value on or prior to 1 July 

2005, the date of transition to IFRS, are measured 

on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued 

amount at the date of the revaluation. Thereafter 

the cost model continued to be used. Where 

parts of an item of property, plant and 

equipment have different useful lives or 

depreciation methods, they are accounted for 

as separate items of property, plant and 

equipment if they have a cost that is significant in 

relation to the cost of the remainder of the asset. 

Leased assets 

Finance leases are recognised as assets and 

liabilities and measured at amounts equal to the 

fair value of the leased asset or if lower, the 

present value of the minimum lease payments, 

each determined at the inception of the lease. 

The leased assets are depreciated over the 

shorter of their useful life and lease term. All other 

leases are classified as operating leases. 

. 

Subsequent costs 

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of 

an item of property, plant and equipment the 

cost of replacing part of such an item when the 

cost is incurred if it is probable that the future 

economic benefits embodied with the item will 

flow to the Group and the cost of the item can 

be measured reliably. All other costs are 

recognised in profit or loss as an expense as 

incurred. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a 

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 

of each part of property, plant and equipment so 

as to write it down to its residual value. Land is not 

depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as 

follows: 

 
Office furniture and 

equipment  

10 years 

Computer software 2 years 

Motor vehicles and 

leasehold improvements 

    5 years 

 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and 

depreciation method are reviewed at each year 

end. 

 

 

 

Profit and loss on disposal are recognised in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income and is 

calculated as the difference between the 

proceeds less carrying value. 

Development costs 

Development costs relating to major programmes 

at a mine are capitalised. Development costs 

consist primarily of expenditure to expand the 

capacity of the mine. Day-to-day mine 

development costs to maintain production are 

expensed as incurred. Initial development and 

pre-production costs relating to a new ore body, 

including amortisation, depreciation and interest 

on borrowed funds used to develop the ore 

body, are capitalised until commissioning of 

production facilities and commercial levels of 

production are achieved. This is evaluated on a 

quarterly basis and would occur when the mine 

has achieved breakeven profitability and is likely 

to maintain these levels for at least the next 

quarter. 

The Group reviews the carrying amount of mining 

assets and development costs when 

circumstances suggest the carrying amount may 

not be recoverable. Recoverability is assessed 

using estimates of future cash flows on a 

discounted basis, including revenues, operating 

costs and future capital expenditures. Where 

necessary a reduction in carrying amount is 

recorded. 

Tangible exploration and evaluation 

assets 

Exploration and evaluation costs are capitalised 

as exploration and evaluation assets on a project 

by project basis pending determination of the 

technical feasibility and commercial viability of 

the project. Exploration or evaluation assets are 

assessed for impairment on an annual basis. 

The technical feasibility and commercial viability 

of extracting a mineral resource is considered to 

be determinable when proven and probable 

reserves are determined to exist. Upon 

determination of proven and probable reserves, 

exploration or evaluation assets are first tested for 

impairment and then reclassified from exploration 

or evaluation assets to a separate category within 

tangible assets. Expenditure incurred related to 

unsuccessful studies is recognised in the statement 

of comprehensive income as incurred. 

Costs in evaluating projects are written to profit or 

loss in the year incurred. 
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Intangible assets 

Intangible exploration and evaluation assets 

Expenditure related to the acquisition, including 

the costs of acquiring licenses, acquisition of 

rights to explore and geographical studies 

exploration of exploration properties, net of any 

recoveries are capitalised. When a licence is 

relinquished, continued exploration is not 

planned in the foreseeable future or when other 

events and circumstances indicate that the 

carrying amount may not be recovered, the 

accumulated costs and expenditures are 

impaired. Capitalised expenditure relating to 

exploration and evaluation assets represents 

costs to be charged against income in the future 

and do not necessarily reflect the present or 

future values of the particular projects. 

Other intangible assets 

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the 

Group are stated at cost less accumulated 

amortisation and impairment losses. Expenditure 

on internally generated goodwill and brands is 

recognised in profit or loss as an expense as 

incurred. 

 

 

Subsequent costs 

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised 

intangible assets is capitalised only when it 

increases the future economic benefits 

embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. 

All other expenditure is expensed as incurred. 

Amortisation 

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a 

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 

of the intangible assets unless such lives are 

indefinite. Goodwill and intangible assets with an 

indefinite useful life are automatically tested for 

impairment at each statement of financial 

position date and whenever there is an indicator 

of impairment. Other intangible assets are 

amortised from the date they are available for 

use in the manner intended by management. 

The difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the 

intangible asset is the gain or loss on disposal of 

the asset. These gains and losses are recognised 

in profit or loss. 
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Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net 

realisable value. Net realisable value is the 

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business, less the estimated costs of completion 

and selling expenses. 

The cost of inventories is based on the weighted 

average principal and includes expenditure 

incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing 

them to their existing location and condition. 

Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, 

slow moving and defective inventory. 

Consumable stores and materials are valued at 

the lower of cost and net realisable value on a 

weighted average cost basis. Obsolete, 

redundant and slow moving inventory is identified 

and written down to recoverable amounts / net 

realisable values. 

Natural stone inventories are valued at the lower 

of average cost of production or net realisable 

value if lower. Stock-pile and in-process 

inventories are valued at the lower of moving 

average cost of production and estimated net 

realisable value. The average cost of production 

is taken as total cost incurred on mining, including 

amortisation costs, and is allocated to inventory 

on a unit of production basis. 

Impairment 

The carrying amounts of the Group‟s assets, 

inventory are reviewed at each statement of 

financial position date to determine whether 

there is any indication of impairment. If such an 

indication exists, the asset‟s recoverable amount 

is estimated. 

For goodwill, assets that have an indefinite useful 

life and intangible assets that are not yet 

available for use, the recoverable amount is 

estimated at each Statement of Financial Position 

date and whenever there is an indicator of 

impairment. 

 

 

 

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the 

carrying amount of an asset or its cash-

generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-

generating units are allocated first to reduce the 

carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to 

cash-generating units (group of units) and then, 

to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets 

in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. 

When a decline in the fair value of an available-

for-sale financial asset has been recognised 

directly in equity and there is objective evidence 

that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that 

had been recognised directly in equity is 

recognised in profit or loss even though the 

financial asset has not been derecognised. The 

amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised 

in profit or loss is the difference between the 

acquisition cost and current fair value, less any 

impairment loss on that financial asset previously 

recognised in profit or loss. 

Calculation of impairment 

The impairment of Groups financial assets carried 

at amortised costis calculated as the present 

value of estimated future cash flows, discounted 

at the original effective interest rate (i.e., the 

effective interest rate computed at initial 

recognition of these financial assets).  

Receivables with a short duration are not 

discounted unless the effect thereof is material. 

The recoverable amount of other assets is the 

greater of their fair value less costs to sell and 

value in use.  In assessing value in use, the 

estimated future cash flows are discounted to 

their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 

that reflects current market assessments of the 

time value of money and the risks specific to the 

asset.  For an asset that does not generate 

largely independent cash inflows, the 

recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
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Reversals of impairment 

An impairment loss in respect of a held-to-

maturity investment and loans or receivables 

carried at amortised cost is reversed if the 

subsequent increase in recoverable amount can 

be related objectively to an event occurring after 

the impairment loss was recognised. 

An impairment loss in respect of an investment in 

an equity instrument classified as available for 

sale is not reversed through profit or loss.  If the fair 

value of a debt instrument classified as available-

for-sale increases and the increase can be 

objectively related to an event occurring after 

the impairment loss was recognised in profit or 

loss, the impairment loss shall be reversed, with 

the amount of the reversal recognised in profit or 

loss. 

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not 

reversed.  In respect of other assets, an 

impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 

change in the estimates used to determine the 

recoverable amount. 

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 

that the asset‟s carrying amount does not 

exceed the carrying amount that would have 

been determined, net of depreciation or 

amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 

recognised. 

Interest-bearing borrowings 

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised 

initially at fair value less attributable transaction 

costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-

bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost 

with any difference between cost and 

redemption value being recognised in profit or 

loss over the period of the borrowings on an 

effective interest basis. 

Provisions 

A provision is recognised in the statement of 

financial position when the Group has a present 

legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 

past event, and it is probable that an outflow of 

economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are 

determined by discounting the expected future  

 

 

 

 

cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money 

and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the 

liability. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to 

settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed 

by another party, the reimbursement is 

recognised when, and only when, it is virtually 

certain that reimbursement will be received if 

the Group settles the obligation.  The 

reimbursement is treated as a separate asset.  

The amount recognised for the reimbursement 

does not exceed the amount of the provision. 

If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the 

present obligation under the contract is 

recognised and measured as a provision. 

Environmental rehabilitation 

Long-term environmental obligations are based 

on the Group‟s environmental management 

plans, in compliance with current environmental 

and regulatory requirements in the jurisdiction in 

which the Group operates. Full provision is made 

based on the estimated cost of restoring the 

environmental disturbance that has occurred up 

to the statement of financial position date with a 

corresponding increase in the related property, 

plant and equipment. Increases due to 

additional environmental disturbances are 

capitalised and amortised over the life of the 

mine. 

Annual increases in the provision relating to the 

change in the provision and inflationary 

increases are shown separately in profit or loss, 

except where the related mine is under 

development and has not yet reached 

commercial levels of production, in which case 

such adjustment is charged or credited in the 

statement of financial position to the carrying 

value of mining assets. 

The estimated costs of rehabilitation is reviewed 

annually and adjusted as appropriate for 

changes in legislation or technology. 

Annual contributions are made to fund the 

estimated cost of rehabilitation during and at 

the end of the life of the mine. The funds 

contributed are included under cash and cash 

equivalents and shown as restricted cash. 
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Revenue 

Goods sold and services rendered 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised 

when all the following conditions have been 

satisfied: 

 the Group has transferred to the buyer the 

significant risks and rewards of ownership of 

the goods; 

 the Group retains neither continuing 

managerial involvement to the degree 

usually associated with ownership nor 

effective control over the goods sold; 

 the amount of revenue can be measured 

reliably; 

 it is probable that the economic benefits 

associated with the transaction will flow to 

the Group; 

 and the costs incurred in respect of the 

transaction can be measured reliably 

When the outcome of a transaction involving 

the rendering of services can be estimated 

reliably, revenue associated with the 

transaction is recognised by reference to the 

stage of completion of the transaction at the 

statement of financial position date. The 

outcome of a transaction can be estimated 

reliably when all the following conditions are 

satisfied: 

 the amount of revenue can be measured 

reliably; 

 it is probable that the economic benefits 

associated with the transaction will flow to 

the Group; 

 the stage of completion of the transaction 

at the statement of financial position date 

can be measured reliably; and 

 the costs incurred for the transaction and 

the costs to complete the transaction can 

be measured reliably. 

When the outcome of the transaction involving 

the rendering of services cannot be estimated 

reliably, revenue is recognised only to the 

extent of the expenses recognised that are 

recoverable. 

 

 

 

 

 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable and 

represents the amounts receivable for goods and 

services provided in the normal course of 

business, net of trade discounts and volume 

rebates, and value added tax 

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it 

accrues, using the effective interest method.   

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on 

the date the Group‟s right to receive payments is 

established which, in the case of quoted 

securities, is usually the ex-dividend date.  Where 

the income relates to investments in the mining 

and associated industries, the income is reflected 

as trade investment income 

The interest expense component of finance lease 

payments is recognised in profit or loss using the 

effective interest rate method.  

Expenses 

Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership to the lessee. All other leases are 

classified as operating leases. 

Operating lease payments 

Payments made under operating leases are 

recognised on the straight-line bases over the 

term of the lease.  Lease incentives received are 

recognised as an integral part of the total lease 

expenses. The difference between the amounts 

recognised as an expense and the contractual 

payments are recognised as an operation lease 

liability.  This liability is not discounted. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period 

in which they are incurred. 

Finance lease payments 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned 

between the finance charge and the reduction 

of the outstanding liability.  The finance charge is 

allocated to each period during the lease term 

so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 

interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
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Expenses (continued) 

Income tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities 

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the 

extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the 

amount already paid in respect of current and 

prior periods exceeds the amount due for those 

periods, the excess is recognised as an asset. 

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and 

prior periods are measured at the amount 

expected to be paid to (recovered from) the tax 

authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that 

have been enacted or substantively enacted by 

the statement of financial position date 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities 

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all 

taxable temporary differences, except to the 

extent that the deferred tax liability arises from: 

 the initial recognition of goodwill; or 

 the initial recognition of an asset or liability 

in a transaction which: 

is not a business combination; and at the time of 

the transaction, affects neither accounting profit 

nor taxable profit (tax loss). 

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all 

taxable temporary differences associated with 

investments in subsidiaries, except to the extent 

that both of the following conditions are 

satisfied: 

 the parent, investor or acquiree is able to 

control the timing of the reversal of the 

temporary difference; and 

 it is probable that the temporary difference 

will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all 

deductible temporary differences to the extent 

that it is probable that taxable profit will be 

available against which the deductible 

temporary difference can be utilised, unless the 

deferred tax asset arises from the initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 

that: 

 is not a business combination; and 

 

 

 

 at the time of the transaction, affects 

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit 

(tax loss). 

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all 

deductible temporary differences arising from 

investments in subsidiaries, to the extent that it is 

probable that: 

 the temporary difference will reverse in the 

foreseeable future; and 

 taxable profit will be available against 

which the temporary difference can be 

utilised. 

Tax expenses 

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as 

income or an expense and included in profit 

or loss for the period, except to the extent that 

the tax arises from: 

 a transaction or event which is recognised, 

in the same or a different period, directly in 

equity, or 

 a business combination. 

Current tax and deferred taxes are changed or 

credited directly to equity if the tax relates to 

items that are credited or charged, in the same 

or a different period, directly to equity. 

Share based payment expenses 

Goods or services received or acquired in a 

share-based payment transaction are 

recognised when the goods or as the services 

are received. A corresponding increase in 

equity is recognised if the goods or services 

were received in an equity-settled share-

based payment transaction. For equity-settled 

share-based payment transactions, the goods 

or services received are measured, and the 

corresponding increase in equity, directly, at 

the fair value of the goods or services 

received, unless that fair value cannot be 

estimated reliably.  If the share based 

payments granted do not vest until the 

counterparty completes a specified period of 

service, Company accounts for those services 

as they are rendered by the counterparty 

during the vesting period, (or on a straight line 

basis over the vesting period). If the share 

based payments vest immediately the services 

received are recognised in full. 
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Non-current assets held for sale and 

discontinued operations 

Immediately before classification as held for 

sale, the measurement of the assets (and all 

assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is 

brought up-to-date in accordance with 

applicable IFRSs.  Thereafter, on initial 

classification as held for sale, non-current assets 

and disposal groups are recognised at the lower 

of carrying amount and fair value less costs to 

sell. 

Impairment losses on initial classification as held 

for sale are included in profit or loss..  The same 

applies to gains and losses on subsequent 

measurement.   

A discontinued operation is a component of the 

Group‟s business that represents a separate 

major line of business or geographical area of 

operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively 

with a view to resale. 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs 

upon disposal or when the operation meets the 

criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier.  

A disposal group that is to be abandoned may 

also qualify.   

Comparative figures have been rested in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income to reflect 

the impact on previously reported numbers. 

Share capital and equity 

An equity instrument is any contract that 

evidences residual interest of the asset of an 

entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 

Operating segments 

A segment is a distinguishable component of the 

Group that is engaged in providing products or 

services which is subject to risks and rewards that 

are different from those other segments. The 

Group‟s primary format for segment reporting is 

based on its business activities. 

 



BAUBA PLATINUM LIMITED  
(formerly Absolute Holdings Limited) 

38 

 

Notes to the financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 
  Group  Company 
  30 June 

2010  

30 June 

2009  

30 June 

2010  

30 June 

2009 
  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

2 Revenue         
 An analysis of the revenue of the Group 

for the year is as follows:        

 Retail sales 487  4 673  -  - 

 Dividend income from available for sale 

financial assets 1 797  956  1 797  956 

 Administration fees received from its 

associates and subsidiaries. 300  -  900  600 

  2 584  5 629  2 697  1 556 

 
Attributable to: 

Continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

2 097 

487  

 

956 

4 673  

2 697 

- 

 

 

 

1 556 

- 

 Total revenue 2 584  5 629  2 697  1 556 

3 Loss from operations for continuing and 

discontinued operations is arrived at 

after charging (crediting) the following 

items: 

       

3.1 Auditors’ remuneration 276  230  263  123 

 - Audit fees 257  192  257  98 

 - Other services 19  38  6  25 

 Attributable to: 

Continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

 

263 

13 

  

123 

107 

  

263 

- 

  

123 

- 

  276  230  263  123 

 

3.2 

 

Operating lease charges 

 

371 

 

 

 

1 479 

  

168 

  

144 

 - Premises 259  1 354  162  144 

 - Office equipment 7  31  6  - 

 - Vehicles 105  94  -  - 

 Attributable to: 

Continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

 

168 

203 

  

144 

1 335 

  

168 

- 

  

144 

- 

  371  1 479  168  144 

3.3 Personel expenses 4 463  4 140  3 918  3 076 

 - Salaries and wages 4 281  3 981  3 736  2 922 

 - Increase in leave pay accrual 182  159  182  154 

 Attributable to: 

Continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

 

3 918 

545 

  

3 076 

1 064 

  

3 918 

- 

  

3 076 

- 

  4 463  4 140  3 918  3 076 

3.4 (Loss)/Profit on disposal of property, plant 

and equipment (3)  (57)  -  (4) 

 Attributable to:        

 Continuing operations -  -  -  (4) 

 Discontinued operations (3)  (57)  -  - 

  (3)  (57)  -  (4) 
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  Group  Company 
  30 June 

2010  

30 June 

2009  

30 June 

2010  

30 June 

2009 
  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

 Operating loss for continuing and 

discontinued operations (continued) 

       

3.5 Depreciation 45  48  11  6 

 - Office equipment -  2  -  - 

 - Computer equipment 

- Leasehold improvements 

- Furniture and fittings 

23 

- 

2 

 7 

6 

7 

 10 

- 

1 

 6 

- 

- 

 - Motor vehicles 

- Mining equipment 

10 

10 

 26 

- 

 - 

- 

 - 

- 

 Attributable to: 

Continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

 

11 

34  

 

6 

42 

 

 

11 

-  

 

6 

- 

  45  48  11  6 

3.6 Profit/(loss) on foreign exchange 

Continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

- 

- 

- 

 217 

- 

217 

 - 

- 

- 

 - 

- 

- 

3.7 
Directors’ remuneration* 2 602  2 104  2 602  2 104 

 - Executive directors 2 450  2 024  2 450   2 024 

 - Non-executive directors 152  80  152  80 
 

Share options granted to directors have 

no statement of comprehensive 

income impact. For detailed analysis 

refer to note 25. 

       

 

4 Finance charges        

 - Bank accounts 

- Long term loans 

301 

1 918 

 195 

672 

 294 

1 918 

 10 

672 

 - Payables 19  21  17  11 

 - Short term loans 83  -  83  - 

 Less amounts capitalised to mining 

development (523)  (656)  -  - 

  
1 798  232  2 312  693 

 Attributable to:        

 Continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

100 

1 698  

42 

190  

2 312 

-  

693 

- 

  1 798  232  2 312  693 
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  Group  Company 
  30 June 

2010  

30 June 

2009  

30 June 

2010  

30 June 

2009 
  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

 

5 Taxation        

Unrecognised deferred tax assets 

The following deferred tax assets have not 

been recognised at the statement of 

financial position date because it is uncertain 

when future taxable profit will be available to 

utilise the tax losses. Tax loss is R‟000 10 781 

(2009 :R‟000 5 624) 

 

 

 

 

 

3 019 

  

 

 

 

 

1 575 

  

 

 

 

 

- 

 

  

 

 

 

 

- 

 

No provision has been made for normal taxation by the Group as the Group had no taxable 

income for the year. As the Company does not trade it has no taxable income or losses available 

to be set off against future income. 

 

 
6.    Group Motor 

vehicles 

Leasehold 

improve-

ments 

Computer 

equipment 

Furniture 

and Office 

equipment 

Mining 

develop-

ment and 

prospect-

ing rights 1 

Mining 

equipment 

Total 

 R 000’s R 000’s R 000’s R 000’s R 000’s R 000’s R 000’s 

At cost 1 July 2008 - 133 - - 19 566 858 20 557 

Less: accumulated 

depreciation - - - - - (21) (21) 

Carrying value as at 1 July 

2008 - 133 - - 19 566 837 20 536 

Plus: Additions  55 - 96 - 5 355 19 5 525 

Less: Depreciation  (4) - (17) - - (44) (65) 

Less: Disposals - - (10) - - - (10) 

Transfers to mining 

development - (133) - - 718 (585) - 

Carrying value as at 30 

June 2009 51 - 69 - 25 639 228 25 987 

At cost 1 July 2009 55 - 84 - 25 639 292 26 070 

Less: accumulated 

depreciation (4) - (15) - - (64) (83) 

Carrying value as at 1 July 

2009 51 - 69 - 25 639 228 25 987 

Plus: Additions  - - 1 41 4 498 - 4 540 

Less: Depreciation / 

Impaiment (10) - (23) (2) (16 710) (46) (16 791) 

Less: Disposals - - - - - - - 

Transfers to disposal group 

held for sale (41) - (15) (3) (13 427) (182) (13 668) 

Carrying value as at 30 

June 2010 - - 32 36  - - 68 

Cost as 30 June 2010 - - 42 37  - - 79 

Accumulated Depreciation - - (10) (1) - - (11) 

1 Included in property above are mineral rights in respect of Diamond Quartzite and Picture Stone. Mineral rights have not been 

amortised yet as the activities for the year consisted mostly of clearing the area to start active mining of the quarry. 
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6.    Company Motor 

vehicles 

Leasehold 

improve-

ments 

Computer 

equipment 

Furniture 

and Office 

equipment 

Mining 

develop-

ment and 

prospecting 

rights 1 

Mining 

equipment 

Total 

 R 000’s R 000’s R 000’s R 000’s R 000’s R 000’s R 000’s 

At cost 1 July 2008 - - - - - - - 

Less: accumulated 

depreciation - - - - - - - 

Carrying value as at 1 

July 2008 - - - - - - - 

Plus: Additions  - - 34 - - - 34 

Less: Depreciation  - - (6) - - - (6) 

Less: Disposals - - - - - - - 

Transfers to disposal 

group held for sale - - - - - - - 

Carrying value as at 30 

June 2009 - - 28 - - - 28 

At cost 1 July 2009 - - 34 - - - 34 

Less: accumulated 

depreciation - - (6) - - - (6) 

Carrying value as at 1 

July 2009 - - 28 - - - 28 

Plus: Additions  - - 14 37 - - 51 

Less: Depreciation  - - (10) (1) - - (11) 

Less: Disposals - - - - - - - 

Transfers to mining 

development - - - - - - - 

Transfers to disposal 

group held for sale        

Carrying value as at 30 

June 2010 - - 32 36 - - 68 

Cost as 30 June 2010 - - 42 37 - - 79 

Accumulated 

Depreciation - - (10) (1) - - (11) 
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                       Group                   Company 

  30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

  7 Disposal group held for sale and  

discontinued operations 

7.1 Disposal group and assets classified as 

held for sale 

   

 

    

         

 As described in the circular issued to shareholders on 17 May 2010 and in relation to the 

acquisition of the Bauba Project, the existing financial, mining and exploration assets of Bauba 

prior to the acquisition of the Bauba Project will be disposed of in due course and will not be 

material to the Group post the Bauba project acquisition.  In terms of the Bauba acquisition 

agreement, these non-core assets will be disposed of on a best endeavours basis.  It has being 

agreed that the existing shareholder loan owing to Calulo Resources (Pty) Ltd will be reduced 

through revenues and cash flows arising from these assets as well as from net sale proceeds 

arising from the disposal of these assets and as such, these assets are pledged as security for 

the shareholder loan until such time as the loan is fully repaid.   A formal loan agreement 

embodying the above has been entered into pursuant to the transaction and further details 

are disclosed in note 16. As a result of the decision all the non-core assets and associated 

liabilities have being treated as assets held for the sale and the results for this financial year as 

discontinued operations. 

                      Group                   Company 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

 Property, plant and equipment  241  -  -  - 

 Tangible exploration and evaluation 

assets 9 759 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 Intangible exploration and evaluation 

assets 3 668 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 Investments in financial assets 16 000  -  16000  - 

 Investment in associate 1 509    1 509  - 

 Loans to subsidiaries -  -  13 350  - 

 Inventories 897  -  -  - 

 Trade and other receivables 76  -  -  - 

 Short term and other receiveables 158  -  -  - 

 Cash and cash equivalents 283  -  -  - 

 Assets of non-core assets classified as 

held for sale 32 591 

 

- 

 

30 859 

 

- 

 Long-term liabilities 19 534  -  19 444  - 

 Rehabilitation liability 522  -  -  - 

 Trade and other payables 2 317  -  -  - 

 Bank overdraft 3 062    3 056   

 Liabilities of non-core assets classified as 

held for sale 25 435 

 

- 

 

22 500 

 

- 

 Net assets of non-core assets classified as 

held for sale 7 156 

 

- 

 

8 359 

 

- 
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7.2   Discontinued operations 

 

The results of the discontinued operations included in profit or loss are set out below. The 

comparative loss and cash flows from discontinued operations have been restated to include 

those operations classified as discontinued in the current period. 

 Group 

 

 Company 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

Revenue 487  4 673  -  - 

Cost of sales (662)  (3 202)  -  - 

Gross profit 

Net Finance Income (Expense) 

(175) 

(1 667) 

 1 471 

11 

 -  - 

Expenses (1 148)  (3 716)  -  - 

Impairment loss on write down of 

disposal Group 

 

(16 710) 

  

- 

  

- 

  

- 

Net loss from discontinued operations (19 700)  (2 234)  -  - 

 

8 Investment in Financial assets        
  

2010  2009  

30 June  

2010  

30 June 

2009 
  % held  % held  R 000’s  R 000‟s 
 Classified as Available-for-sale 

Unlisted  

       

 Qinisele Resources (Proprietary) Limited 25.1%  25.1%  20 000  20 000 
 

Impairment of investment in financial assets           
 Qinisele Resources (Proprietary) Limited     (4 000)  - 
 Carrying value        
 

Qinisele Resources (Proprietary) Limited     16 000  20 000 
 Less:  Classified as part of disposal group held 

for sale.   

 

    (16 000)  - 
 

Total Investment in Financial Assets     -  20 000 

 
Investment in Qinisele Resources (Proprietary) Limited whereby the Company owns 25.1% or 314 ordinary 

shares of the issued share capital. The Company‟s investment in Qinisele Resources has not been equity 

accounted for but has been treated as an investment as the Company cannot exercise significant influence 

over its operating philosophies and strategic direction. The fair value of the above asset approximates the 

cash flows discounted using a rate based on market interest rate – 12% and the risk premium specific to 

these securities. 
 

9 Investment in Associated Companies held for 

sale        
  

2010  2009  

30 June  

2010  

30 June 

2009 
  % held  % held  R 000’s  R 000‟s 
 Unlisted         
 Dikopane NN Mining (Proprietary) Limited 

Classified as part of disposal group held for sale. 

36.5% 

 

  

- 

 

  

1 509 

 

(1 509)  

- 

 

- 
   -  - 

      
 During the year the Company initially acquired 49% with an obligation of R 5 million to provide the funding 

to explore and develop the property. It was subsequently agreed to waive this obligation and that the 

shareholding would be reduced to 36.5% for the same consideration. 
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10 Investment in subsidiaries     Company 
  

2010  2009  

30 June  

2010  

30 June 

2009 
  % held  % held  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

 Unlisted     20 000  20 000 
 Lenopodi (Proprietary) Limited 100%  100%  20 000  20 000 
 Absolute Group Management Services 

(Proprietary) Limited 100%  100%  -  - 
 

Less:   Impairment of investment in subsidiaries     (20 000)  

 

-    
 Lenopodi (Proprietary) Limited     ( 20 000)  - 
 Absolute Group Management Services 

(Proprietary) Limited     -  - 

 Carrying value     -  20 000 

 Lenopodi (Proprietary) Limited     -  20 000 
 Absolute Group Management Services 

(Proprietary) Limited     -  - 
 Less:  Classified as part of disposal group held 

for sale. 

    

-  - 

 Total Investment in Subsidiaries     -  20 000 

 All subsidiaries are incorporated in the Republic of South Africa. 

 Indirectly held    
 Canyon Springs Investments 116 (Pty) Ltd 100%  100% 
 Lubtalk Investments (Pty) Ltd 90%  90% 
 Diamond Quartzite Processing (Pty) Ltd 90%  90% 
 Niemoller Marmer (Pty) Ltd 100%  100% 
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  Group  Company 
  30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 
  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

 

11 Loans to Group companies        

 
Canyon Springs Investments 116 (Pty) Ltd 

Lenopodi (Pty) Ltd 

Lubtalk Investments (Pty) Ltd 

Diamond Quartzite Processing (Pty) Ltd 
Niemoller Marmer (Edms) Bpk 

    
1 350 

2 590 

2 719 

10 618 

18 

 
339 

2 586 

2 716 

7 981 

  13 

      17 295   13 635 
 Less :  Impairment of loans      (3 945)  - 
 Comprising:        
 - Non-current assets: Loans to 

subsidiaries 

    

13 350  13 635 
 Less :  Classified as part of disposal group 

held for sale. 

     

(13 350) 

  

- 

 Total Loans to Group Companies     -  13 635 

 Loans are unsecured, interest free and there are no fixed repayment terms, except for the loan to 

Diamond Quartzite Processing (Proprietary) Limited which bears interest at prime. The Company 

has subordinated these loans in favour of all other creditors. 
 

 

12    Inventory 
 

      

 The amounts attributable to the different categories are as follows:     

Finished goods 897  2 015  
    

Less:  Classified as part of disposal group 

held for sale 

 

(897) 

  

- 

    

 -  2 015     

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes R ‟000 175 (2009: R nil) in respect of write 

downs of inventory to net realisable value. 

 

     

13    Trade and other receivables    
 Trade receivables 

Provision for doubtful debts 

VAT 

118 

(80) 

425  

181 

- 

760  

- 

- 

395  

- 

- 

417 

Deposits and other receivables 3 261  44  3 253  - 

Less:  Classified as part of disposal group 

held for sale. (76)  

 

-    -  - 

 3 648  985  3 648  417 

        

 Provision for doubtful debts        
 Movement in the provision for doubtful debts is as follows:     

At 1 July 2009 -  80  -  - 

Provision raised  80  -  -  - 

Provision disposed of as part of disposal 

group (80)  (80) 

 -  - 

At 30 June 2010 -  -  -  - 
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  Group  Company 
  30 June 2010  30 June 2009  30 June 2010  30 June 2009 
  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

 

14 Short term loans receivable        
 Richtersveld Ontwikkelings 

Maatskappy Beperk 

(The loan is repayable from future 

dividends declared by Lubtalk 

Investments (Pty) Ltd, bears interest at 

prime and is secured by a pledge of 

the shares held by Richtersveld 

Ontwikkelings Maatskappy Bpk in 

Lubtalk Investments (Pty) Ltd) 

158  142  -  - 

 Less: Classified as part of disposal 

group held for sale. (158)  -  -  - 

  -  142  -  - 

 

15 Share capital        
 Authorised        
 25 000 000 ordinary shares of R1 each 

(2009: 2 500 000 000 ordinary shares of 

1 cent each) 25 000  25 000  25 000  25 000 

 Issued        
 16 011 854 ordinary shares of R1 each 

(2008: 1 403 716 289 ordinary shares of 

1 cent each) 16 012  

 

14 037  16 012  

 

14 037 
 

The unissued shares are under the 

control of the directors until the next 

annual general meeting.  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Share premium 112 062 
 

106 889 
 

112 062 
 

106 889 
 

 

Reconciliation of number of shares 

issued:        
 

Opening balance on shares in issue 1 403 716 289  856 374 874  1 403 716 289  856 374 874 
 

Issues in terms of the rights issue -  214 008 081  -  214 008 081 
 

Issues in terms of the acquisition of 

Qinisele Resources (Pty) Ltd -  333 333 334  --  333 333 334 
 

Issues in terms of the acquisition of 

Dikopane NN Mining (Pty) Ltd 8 333 333  -  8 333 333  - 
 

New shares issued for cash 189 135 135  -  189 135 135  - 
 

Adjustment for the consolidation of 

the share capital of the company 1  (1 585 172 903)  -  (1 585 172 903)  - 
 

Closing balance on shares in issue 16 011 854  1 403 716 289  16 011 854  1 403 716 289 

1 At a general meeting of shareholders the shareholders approved the following resolutions to effect a share 

consolidation as well as afford those shareholders holding less than 10 000 ordinary shares of 1 cent each to sell 

these back to the Company at a price of 4 cents per share. The purchase consideration payable by Absolute for 

the 17 996 shares acquired is R71 984. The number of shareholders was reduced by 907 representing 

approximately 0.36% of the total number of shareholders registered in the register at the opening of the odd-lot 

offer. The effects of the resolution was to consolidate the share capital of Absolute on the basis of 1-for-100 

ordinary shares, from an authorised share capital of 2 500 000 000 ordinary shares of R0.01 each to 25 000 000 

ordinary shares of R1.00 each and an issued share capital of 1 601 184 758 ordinary shares of R0.01 each to 16 011 

854 ordinary shares of R1.00 each. 
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                     Group                    Company 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

16 Other financial liabilities        

 Other unsecured loans:        

 - Calulo Resources (Proprietary) Limited 

The loan is now secured in terms of an 

agreement concluded on 20 July 2010 

where it will be repaid from the revenue 

and net sale proceeds on the disposal of 

non-core assets within the Group over a 

period of 18 months which can be 

extended by a further 6 months and 

bears interest at prime. At the end of the 

loan period, viz. 18 months, should the 

loan balance still remain unpaid, Calulo 

Resources (Pty) Ltd, can either take over 

ownership of the shares in the companies 

(unsold non-core assets) over which it still 

holds a cession, and any balance due by 

the Company will no longer be 

repayable and the debt will be 

extinguished. 

19 445  17 526  19 445  17 526 

 - Richtersveld Ontwikkelings 

Maatskappy Beperk 

The loan has no fixed repayment terms 

and will be repaid from dividends 

declared by Diamond Quartzite 

Processing (Pty) Ltd. 

90  90  -  - 

 - InsideOut Provided Fund 

The loan is unsecured, and is repayable 

once a minimum of R 60 million of equity 

is raised by the Company and bears 

interest at prime plus 2%. 

1 018  -  1 018  - 

 - Qinisele Resources (Pty) Ltd 

The loan is secured against it‟s own 

shares, and is repayable against future 

dividends declared and bears interest at 

prime plus 2%. 

830  -  830  - 

 - Tucker Boys Trust 

The loan is unsecured, has no repayment 

terms and bears interest at prime plus 2% 

158  521  158  521 

 
 

21 541  18 137  21 451  18 047 

 Less:  Classified as part of disposal group 

held for sale 19 534  

 

-    19 444 

  

- 

  2 007  18 137  2 007  18 047 

 
Non-current liabilities 

-  

 

17 616    -  17 526 

 
Current liabilities 2 007  521  2 007  521 

 
Total other financial liabilities 2 007  18 137  2 007  18 047 
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  Group  Company 
  30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 
  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

 

17 Rehabilitation liability        

         

 Environmental rehabilitation provision at 

beginning of the year 522  -     

 Charged to Mining Development Asset -  522     

 Less: Classified as part of disposal group 

held for sale (522)       

 Environmental rehabilitation provision at 

the end of the year -  522     

         

 In terms of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act 2002 there is a responsibility 

to execute an environmental management program approved for the Lekkersing Quartzite 

mine. Refer note 21. To facilitate this, an amount of R277 633 held in a call account and included 

in cash and cash equivalents serves as collateral for a guarantee from Nedbank Ltd of R200 000 

on behalf of Lubtalk Investments (Proprietary) Limited for the rehabilitation of land disturbed by 

mining activities. 

18 Trade and other payables        

 Trade payables 8 119  4 040  6 589  2 981 

 Other accrual 1 223    441   

 Leave pay accrual 341  159  336  154 

 Straight line rental adjustment accrual 8   -  8  - 

 Less:   Classified as part of disposal 

group held for sale (2 317)  -  -  - 

 
Total Trade and other payables 7 374  4 199  7 374  3 135 
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  Group  Company 
  30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 
  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

 
19 Loss per share        

 
Net loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders 

       

 Loss for the year (25 772)  (8 224)     

  (25 772)  (8 224)     

 Net loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders for continued operations 

       

 Loss for the year from continuing 

operations 

(6 072)  (5 990)     

  (6 072)  (5 990)     

 Net loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders for discontinued 

operations 

       

 Loss for the year from discontinued 

operations 

(19 700)  (2 234)     

  (19 700)  (2 234)     

 Weighted average number of ordinary 

shares (prior year restated for 

consolidation as per note 15) 

No. of 

shares  

No. of 

shares 

    

 Weighted average number of ordinary 

shares (used in the calculation of loss 

per share) 15 665 830  

 

 

11 932 939  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  15 665 830  11 932 939     

19.1 Headline loss per share        

 
Reconciliation between loss and headline loss 

 Net loss for the year (25 772)  (8 224)     

 Discontinued operations (19 700)  (2 234)     

 Headline loss (6 072)  (5 990)     

 Headline loss per share (cents) (38.8)  (50.2)     

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BAUBA PLATINUM LIMITED  
(formerly Absolute Holdings Limited) 

50 

 

Notes to the financial statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 
  Group  Company 
  30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 
  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

 

20 Notes to the statement of cash flows        

20.1 Reconciliation of loss before taxation to 

cash utilised in operations 

 

 Loss before taxation (25 773)  (8 224)  (30 883)  (8 898) 

 Adjustment for:        
 Impairment of investment in and loans to 

subsidiaries -  

 

-  23 945  

 

- 
 Impairment losses on property, plant and 

equipment 16 710  -  -  - 
 Interest paid 1 798  44  2 312  693 
 Depreciation 45  6  11  6 
 Long term receivable written off 407  -  407  - 
 (Profit)/ loss on disposal of subsidiary -  (250)  -  2 912 
 Investment income (31)  (55)  (1 046)  (666) 
 Cash utilised before working capital 

changes (6 844)  (8 479)  (5 254)  (5 953) 

 Working capital changes 3 857  810  1 008  2 185 

 
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other 

receivables (2 754)  (883)  (3 231)  (342) 
 Increase in inventory 1 118  (1553)  -  - 
 (Decrease)/increase in trade and other 

payables 5 493  3 246  4 239  2 527 
         
 Cash utilised in operations (2 987)  (7 669)  (4 246)  (3 768)  
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  Group  Company 
  30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 
  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

 

20.2 Cash and cash equivalents        

         

 Cash and cash equivalents 283    313  -  - 

 Bank overdraft (3 062)  (2 876)  ( 3 056)  (2 876) 

 Less: Classified as part of disposal group 

held for sale 2 779  -  3 056  - 

  -  (2 563)  -  (2 876) 

  

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks. 

The bank overdraft is secured via a limited guarantee from Calulo Resources (Pty) Ltd and the 

facility is limited to R 3 million. It is repayable on demand and bears interest at prime plus 2%. 

(2008: prime plus 2%). In terms of the Loan agreement entered into between the Company the 

Calulo Resources (Pty) Ltd, should the facility be recalled, Qinisele Resources (Pty) Ltd will provide 

a bank guarantee to the value of R1,5 million against the Company‟s shareholding in Qinisele 

Resources (Pty) Ltd. Proceeds from the revenue of non-core assets and sale proceeds from the 

disposal of non-cores assets will first be utilised to repay the bank overdraft. Subsequent to year 

end the Company issued 8 005 029 shares at a price of R3.10 and the overdraft has been repaid, 

however this facility will remain in place until such time as it has been repaid from revenue or non-

core asset share proceeds. 

In terms of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act 2002 there is a responsibility to 

execute an environmental management program approved for the Lekkersing Quartzite mine. 

Refer note 17.  To facilitate this, an amount of R277 633 held in a call account and included in 

cash and cash equivalents serves as collateral for a guarantee from Nedbank Ltd of R200 000 on 

behalf of Lubtalk Investments (Pty) Ltd for the rehabilitation of land disturbed by mining activities.  
 

 

20.3 Cash flows from discontinued operations 

 
Net loss from discontinued operations (19 700)  (2 234)  -  - 

 Depreciation on property, plant and 

equipment of discontinued operations 
 

34  

 

-  

 

-  

 

- 

 Net interest paid by discontinued 

operations 1 667  190  -  - 

 Loss on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment 
 

-  

 

-  

 

-  

 

- 

 Impairment loss on disposal group 16 710  -   -  - 

 Movement in provisions -  -  -  - 

 Cash utilised in working capital 2 849  (1 375)  -  - 

 Cash flow from operating activities 1 560  (3 419)  -  - 

 Net cash from investing activities (4 953)  (4 835)  -  - 

 Net cash from financing activities 1 918  -  -  - 

 Net cash used in discontinued operation (1 475)  (8 254)  -  - 
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21. Commitments and contingencies 

21.1 Lease Commitments 

 

 

The Company entered into a lease agreement for office accommodation in Fourways. The lease 

agreement is for a period of 36 months commencing on 1 May 2010, escalates at 10% per 

annum and the commitments as follows: 

2011                  R 478 020 

2012                  R 525 822 

2013                  R 474 110 

 

 

21.2 Rehabilitation 

 

 In terms of the Minerals and Petroleum Resource Development Act 2002, a responsibility will 

become incumbent on Lubtalk Investments (Proprietary) Limited to execute an environmental 

management program approved by the Department of Minerals and Energy when mining 

activities commence at the Lekkersing Diamond Quartzite mine. 

The purpose of the environmental management program will be to rehabilitate the land 

disturbed by the mining activities. As rehabilitation currently takes place during development 

and a detailed evaluation of the potential rehabilitation liability has been done by an 

independent person who is qualified to do so. This liability has been accounted for and an 

amount of R 521 560 provided for in these annual financial statements. Nedbank Ltd has 

guaranteed an amount of R200 000 to Lubtalk Investments (Proprietary) Limited for the purposes 

of the environmental management program.  A call account deposit of R 277 633 is included in 

cash and cash equivalents and serves as collateral for the guarantee. 
 

21.3 Severance Pay 

 

 Pursuant to a change of control post the acquisition of the Bauba Project, executive directors 

are entitled to a severance payment of up to 1 years salary in the event that the comp[any 

terminates the employment without cause or the directors resigns for good reason within six 

months. 
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22      Events after the reporting date 

22.1  Acquisition of a 60% direct and indirect interest in Bauba A Hlabirwa and NMR. 

Following the detailed cautionary announcement on 15 February 2010, the Company 

advised that, in line with Bauba‟s strategic objective of procuring, acquiring and 

developing junior mining and exploration projects, the Company has concluded a binding 

agreement ("the Transaction Agreement") with Hlabirwa Mining Investments (Pty) Limited 

("Hlabirwa"), Highland Trading Investments Limited ("Highland") and the shareholders of 

Ndarama Mineral Resources (Pty) Limited ("the NMR Shareholders")(collectively “the 

vendors”), whereby Absolute would acquire an effective 60% direct and indirect 

participation in Bauba ("the acquisition”).  A circular to shareholders has been issued 

detailing the following: 

The acquisition of: 

 an effective 60% participation in Bauba for a purchase consideration of R340 623 000 to 

be settled through the issue of 68 124 600 new shares in Absolute at an issue price of R5.00 

per share, incorporating a minimum capital raising of R60 000 000, and 

 the potential further acquisition of an effective 60% participation in the Houtbosch 

prospecting right subject to the notarial execution and registration of the already granted 

prospecting right, for an additional consideration of R105 948 000, which will be settled 

though the further issue of 21 189 600 new shares in Absolute at an issue price of R5.00 per 

share. 

The following changes will be implemented to effect the transaction: 

 an increase in the Company‟s authorised share capital from 25 000 000 shares of R1.00 

each to 200 000 000 shares of R1.00 each; 

 the specific issue of up to 30 000 000 shares for cash to non-related parties at a price to 

be determined; 

 the issue of approximately 1 875 598 shares to Qinisele Resources at a price to be 

determined; 

 a proposed waiver of a mandatory offer; and 

 the amendment to the share incentive scheme. 

 

This transforming transaction will be repositioning the Company by: 

 the reconstitution of the Board of Directors; and 

 the transfer of the Company‟s listing to the Main Board of the JSE Limited. 

22.2   Closing and irrevocable undertakings 

Shareholders are advised that the required minimum capital raising closed on Tuesday, 20 

July 2010. Irrevocable undertakings with a gross proceeds value of R24 815 590 have been 

received and accordingly 8 005 029 new shares at R3.10 will be issued within the 

shareholders‟ authority and existing authorised share capital of the Company.                                                          

22.3  New Board 

The following new Board appointments will take place once all the necessary resolutions 

are registered and the new shares for the Bauba acquisition have been issued. 

 

Mr JG Best   – Independent Non-executive Chairman 

Mr PC Pienaar   – Chief Executive Officer; 

Dr NM Phosa   – Non-Executive Director; 

Mr KV Dicks   – Independent Non-Executive Director; and 

Mr SM Dolamo   – Independent Non-Executive Director. 
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23 Related party transactions 
 Significant shareholders Calulo Resources (Pty) Ltd 
  Tucker Boys Trust 
 Corporate advisors Qinisele Resources (Pty) Ltd 
 Associates (not equity accounted) Dikopane NN Mining (Pty) Ltd 
 Subsidiaries Lenopodi (Pty) Ltd 
  Canyon Springs Investments 116 (Pty) Ltd 
  Lubtak Investments (Pty) Ltd 
  Diamond Quartzite Processing (Pty) Ltd 
 Members of key management MK Diale 
  MW Rosslee 
  GP Sequeira 
  AM Sher 
  JJ Serfontein 

 

  Group  Company 
  30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 

 30 June 

2010 

 30 June 

2009 
  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

 

 Related party balances - Subsidiaries        
 Loan to/(from) Canyon Springs Investments 

116 (Pty) Ltd     1 350  339 
 Loan to/(from) Lenopodi (Pty) Ltd     2 590  2 586 
 Loan to/(from) Lubtalk Investments (Pty) Ltd     2 719  2 716 
 Loan to/(from) Diamond Quartzite Processing 

(Pty) Ltd     10 618  7 981 
 Loan to/(from) Niemoller Marmer (Pty) Ltd     18  13 

                17 295  13 635         

 Loans from related parties         

 Calulo Resources (Pty) Ltd 19 444  17 526  19 444  17 526 
 Tucker Boys Trust 157  521  157  521 
 Qinisele Resources (Pty) Ltd 830  -  830  - 
 Related party balances included in 

trade receivables/(trade payables) 

      
 

 Calulo Resources (Pty) Ltd (141)  -  (37)  - 
 Dikopane NN Mining (Pty) Ltd 327  -  327  - 
 Qinisele Resources (Pty) Ltd (1 226)   (1 189)  (1 226)  (1 189) 
 Related party transactions         
 Admin fees received  

- Diamond Quartzite Processing (Pty) Ltd 

- Canyon Springs (Pty) Ltd 

- Dikopane NN  Mining(Pty) Ltd 

- 

- 

(300)  

- 

- 

-  

(300) 

(300) 

(300)  

(600) 

- 

- 
 Interest received 

- Diamond Quartzite Processing (Pty) Ltd -  -  (1 046)  (651) 
 Corporate advisory fee paid to Qinisele 

Resources (Pty) Ltd 1 250  900  1 250  900 
 Interest paid on shareholders loan Calulo 

Resources (Pty) Ltd 1 918  651  1 918  651 
 Interest paid on shareholders loan Tucker Boys 

Trust 14  21  14  21 
 Office rent paid  

- Calulo Investments Ltd 21  144  21  144 
 Dividends received Qinisele Resources (Pty) 

Ltd (1 797)  (956)  (1 797)  (956) 
 Compensation to directors and other key 

management        
 Directors remuneration (see note 25) 2 449  2 024  2 449  2 024 
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24  Financial instruments 
  

The Company‟s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: these include market risk 

(including interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.  The 

Company‟s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial 

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company‟s financial 

performance.  

24.1 
 

Liquidity risk 

  
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet 

commitments. Whilst the Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring cash flows and ensuring 

that adequate cash is available or by maintaining or renewing borrowing facilities as 

appropriate, formal policies and procedures regarding these risks have not been drawn up. 

 

The Group does however manage its borrowings by only dealing with well-established financial 

institutions of high credit standing or through enacting secured funding through its direct or 

indirect shareholders. 

   Less than 1 

year 

 Between1 

and 2 years 

    

 
  

R 000’s  R 000’s 
 

   

 As at 30 June 2010         

          

 Trade and other payables  9 394  -     

 Calulo Resources Loan  -  19 445     

 Bank overdraft  -  3 056     

          

 As at 30 June 2009         

          

 Trade and other payables  4 199  -     

 Calulo Resources loan  -  17 526     

 Bank overdraft  2 876  -     

 

24.2 

 

Interest rate risk 

 
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as it borrows funds at floating interest rates.  

The risk is managed by the Group by policies adopted to ensure all its borrowings are at market 

related rates. The impact of any changes in interest rates would be as follows 

Bank Overdraft – a 2% increase would impact net profit by R60 000 on annual basis.  

Shareholders loans – a 2% increase would impact net profit by R400 000 on annual basis  
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24.3 Credit risk 

 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial 

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. 

Financial assets, which potentially subject the Group to concentrations of credit risk, consists 

principally of investments, loans, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. 

Loans are granted to subsidiaries. The loans have no repayment terms however the Group‟s 

considers all loan balances to be recoverable and therefore no impairment provision is required 

The Group only deposits cash surpluses with major banks of high quality credit standing. 

At statement of financial position date the Group had trade receivables and sundry debtors 

amounting to R985k (2008: R102k). 

 

24.4 Foreign currency risk 

 
The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from 

various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US Dollar and the Euro. The Company 

does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.  

  

24.5 Fair values 
 

At 30 June 2010 the fair values of all financial instruments are substantially identical to carrying 

amounts reflected in the statement of financial position. 
  

24.6 Capital management 

 
The board considers working capital management critical to the business, and in doing so, 

manages the balance between current and non-current liabilities. However as is typical of early 

stage mining and exploration companies, they are dependent on funding from shareholders, 

the certainty of which cannot be guaranteed. 

 
                    Group                   Company 
   

30 June 

2010 

  

30 June 

2009 

  

30 June 

2010 

  

30 June 

2009 
  R 000’s  R 000‟s  R 000’s  R 000‟s 

25 Directors emoluments        
 Executive directors for services as 

directors 

       

 MW Rosslee 

GP Sequeira 

2 417 

32 

 2 000 

24 

 2 417 

32 

 2 000 

24 
  2 449  2 024  2 449  2 024 

 
MW Rosslee is entitled to 300 000 share options that vest over a period of 2 years. They are 

offered at a price of R6.00 (6 cents before share consolidation) and at year end 225 000 could 

be exercised. The value ascribed to these options is however nil and thus no costs associated 

with these have been accounted for using the following input variables in the option pricing 

model. At the date of this report the trust deed has still to be registered with the master. 

Volatility – 25% 

Interest free rate – 8% 

 Non executive directors for services as 

directors 

       

 MK Diale 48  40  48  40 

 AM Sher 72  40   72  40  

 JJ Serfontein 32  -  32  - 

         

 Total directors remuneration 152   80   152   80  
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Notes to the financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 

                    Group                   Company 

 

   

30 June 

2010 

  

30 June 

2009 

  

30 June 

2010 

  

30 June 

2009 

26 Personnel        

         

 Number of personnel employed by the 

Group 4  78  4  3 

         
 

 

27  Segmental Information Continuing operations Discontinued operations 

 
Corp-

orate Mining 

Invest-

ment Total Trading 

Corp-

orate Mining 

Invest-

ment Total 

 R '000s R '000s R '000s R '000s R '000s R '000s R '000s R '000s R '000s 

2010          

Revenues from external customers 300 - 1 797 2 097 - - 488  - 488 

Interest expense 100 - - 100 - 1 697 - - 1 697 

Depreciation and amortisation 11 - - 11 - - - - - 

Net profit/(loss) (7 869) - 1 797 (6 072) - (1 697) (18 003) - (19 700) 

          

Assets 67 - 3 648 3 715 - - - - - 

Net non-current assets classified as held 

for sale - - - - - - (9 638) 16 000 6 362 

Liabilities 9 381 - - 9 381 - - - - - 

Capital expenditure - - - - - - 3 346 1 112 4 458 

          

2009          

Revenues from external customers - - 956 956 4 673 - - - 4 673 

Interest expense 42 - - 42 190 - - - 190 

Depreciation and amortisation 6 - - 6 42 - - - 42 

Net profit/(loss) (6 850) - 956 (5 894) (2 331) - (153) - (2 484) 

          

Assets 852 28 997 20 000 49 849 - - - - - 

Non-current assets classified as held for 

sale - - - - - - - - - 

Liabilities 10 420 15 314 - 25 734 - - - - - 

Capital expenditure 34 5 491 20 000 25 525 - - - - - 
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Shareholder’s analysis 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 

 
 

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS 

 

Shareholder 

 

No. of Shares 25 June 2010 30 June 2009 

Public 1 520 11 211 709 7 277 536 

    

Non-Public    

Shareholders holding more than 

10% of total issued capital 

3 3 691 695 1 845 149 

Directors and Associates 4 1 108 450 4 914 478 

Total shareholders 1 527 16 011 854 14 037 163 

 

SHAREHOLDERS ANALYSIS AND INFORMATION 

 

Percentage Holding No. of Shares No. of Holders % Holding 

Individuals 5 635 468 1 352 35.20% 

Nominees and Trusts 2 978 967 51 18.60% 

Close Corporations 964 747 22 6.03% 

Companies, Financial Institutions 6 432 672 102 40.17% 

Total shareholders 16 011 854 1 527 100.00% 

 

 

 

   

Size of Shareholding No. of Holders No. of Shares % Holding 

1 – 1 000 936 368 240 2.30% 

1 001 – 10 000 473 1 732 560 10.82% 

10 001 – 100 000 104 3 003 917 18.76% 

100 001 – 1 000 000 12 4 278 510 26.72% 

1 000 001 and over 2 6 628 627 41.40% 

Total shareholders 1 527 16 011 854 100.00% 

 

CATEGORISATION OF SHAREHOLDERS  

PUBLIC VS NON-PUBLIC AS AT 30 JUNE 2010 

 

 Number of shares % Holding 

Non Public   

Shareholders holding more than 10% of total issued 

capital 

3 691 695 23.06% 

   

Directors and Associates of the Company 1 108 450 6.92% 

Public 11 211 709 70.02% 

Total shareholders 16 011 854 100.00% 
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Notice of annual general meeting 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 
 

 

BAUBA PLATINUM LIMITED 

(formely Absolute Holdings Limited) 

 (Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa) 

(Registration number 1986/004649/06) 

("Bauba" or "company") 

JSE code: BAU      ISIN code: ZAE000145686 

 

 

Directors 

JG Best (Chairman)*# 

PC Pienaar (Chief Executive Officer)  

MW Rosslee (Financial Director)  

KV Dicks*# 

SM Dolamo*# 

NM Phosa* 

MK Diale * 

AM Sher*# 

GP Sequeira 

JJ Serfontein* 

* Non-executive 

# Independent 

 

 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 

 

 

Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of shareholders of the Company will be 

held at the New Atrium, The JSE, One Exchange Square, Gwen Lane, Sandown, at 10:00 on 

Tuesday, 19 October 2010, to consider, and if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modifications, 

the following ordinary resolutions: 

 

Ordinary resolution number 1 – annual financial statements 

“RESOLVED THAT the annual financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the 

period ended 30 June 2010, together with the directors‟ and auditors‟ reports thereon, be 

received, considered and adopted”. 

 

Explanatory note: 

At the annual general meeting the directors must present the audited annual financial 

statements for the year ended 30 June 2010 to shareholders together with the reports of the 

directors and auditors as contained in the 2010 annual report. 
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Notice of annual general meeting 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 
 

Ordinary resolution number 2 – director retirement of GP Sequeria 

“RESOLVED THAT:  the retirement of GP Sequeria as a director of the Company in accordance 

with the provisions of the Company‟s article of association, be and hereby is accepted.” 

  

Ordinary resolution number 3 – director retirement of AM Sher 

“RESOLVED THAT: the retirement of AM Sher as a director of the Company in accordance with 

the provisions of the Company‟s article of association, be and hereby is accepted.” 

 

Explanatory note for ordinary resolutions 2 and 3: 

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company one-third of the directors is 

required to retire at each meeting and may offer themselves for re-election.  In terms of the 

articles of association of the Company the CEO, during the period of his service contract, is not 

taken into account when determining which directors are to retire by rotation.   

 

Ordinary resolution number 4 – appointment and remuneration of auditors 

“RESOLVED THAT the appointment of TAG Incorporated as auditors of the Company be and 

hereby is approved and that the audit committee be and hereby are authorised to determine 

the remuneration of the auditors.” 

 

Explanatory note: 

TAG Incorporated has indicated their willingness to continue as the Company’s auditors until 

the next annual general meeting.  The Audit Committee has satisfied itself as to the 

independence of TAG Incorporated.  The Audit Committee has the power in terms of the SA 

Corporate Laws Amendment Act No 24 of, 2006 to approve the remuneration of the external 

auditors.  The remuneration and non-audit fees paid to the auditors during the year ended 

30 June 2010 are contained on page 38. 
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Notice of annual general meeting 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 
 

Ordinary resolution number 5 – remuneration of non-executive directors 

“RESOLVED THAT the remuneration payable to the non-executive directors for the financial year 

commencing 01 July 2010 be and is hereby approved as follows: 

 

 
Chairman of 

the Board 

Chairman of 

Board Sub-

Committee 

Other 

directors 

Members of 

Board Sub-

Committee 

Board Meeting and 

committee meetings: 

 

Attendance fee: 

 

 

 

 

R34 000 

 

 

 

R 30 000 

 

 

 

R27 500 

 

 

 

R 25 500 

 

Explanatory note: 

Shareholders are requested to approve the remuneration payable to non-executive directors 

for serving on the board and board committees of the Company.  The board members’ total 

fees are dependent on their participation on board committees.  Refer to page 21 for the 

board and board composition as at 30 June 2010. 

 

Ordinary resolution number 6 – placing unissued shares under control of directors 

“RESOLVED THAT: the unissued ordinary shares in the capital be placed at the disposal and 

under the  control of the directors of the Company until the next annual general meeting and 

that the Company and the directors be and are hereby authorised and empowered to allot, 

issue and otherwise dispose of such shares, on terms and conditions and at such times as the 

directors‟ in their discretion deem fit, subject to sections 221 and 222 of the Companies Act 61 

of 1973 and the JSE Listings Requirements. 

 

Explanatory note: 

Shareholders are requested to approve the placing of unissued share under the control of the 

directors in order to facilitate potential acquisitions or issues of shares for cash. 
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Ordinary resolution number 7 – general authority to allot and issue shares for cash 

“RESOLVED THAT, subject to the approval of 75% of the members present in person and by 

proxy, and entitled to vote at the meeting, excluding the controlling shareholders of the 

Company and the Company‟s Designated Advisor, the directors of the Company be and 

hereby are authorised, by way of general authority, to allot and issue all or any of the 

authorised but unissued shares in the capital of the Company as they in their discretion deem 

fit, subject to the following limitations:- 

 

 this authority shall not endure beyond the next annual general meeting of the Company  

nor shall it endure beyond 15 months from the date of this meeting; 

 there will be no restrictions in regard to the persons to whom the shares may be issued, 

provided that such shares are to be issued to public shareholders (as defined by the JSE 

Limited (“JSE”) in its Listings Requirements) and not to related parties; 

 upon any issue of shares which, together with prior issues during any financial year, will 

constitute 5% of more of the number of shares of the class in issue, the Company shall by 

way of an announcement of the Securities Exchange News Services (“SENS”), give full 

details thereof, including the effect on net asset value of the Company and earnings per 

share; 

 the aggregate issue of a class of shares already in issue in any financial year will not 

exceed 15% of the number of that class of shares (including securities which are 

compulsorily convertible into shares of that class); and 

 the maximum discount at which shares may be issued is 10% of the weighted average 

traded price of the Company‟s shares over the 30 business days prior to the date that the 

price of the issue is determined or agreed by the directors of the issuer and that the issue 

must be made to public shareholders as defined in paragraphs 4.25 to 4.27 of the Listing 

Requirements of the JSE, unless the JSE otherwise agrees.”  

 

Explanatory note: 

Shareholders are requested to approve the general authority to issue shares for cash in the 

event that the Board of Directors deems this necessary. 

 

 

Voting and Proxies 

 

Certificated shareholders and dematerialised shareholders with “own name” registration 

If you are unable to attend the annual general meeting of Bauba shareholders to be held at 

10:00 on Tuesday, 19 October 2010, at the New Atrium, The JSE, One Exchange Square, Gwen 

Lane, Sandown and wish to be represented thereat, you should complete and return the 

attached form of proxy in accordance with the instructions contained therein and lodge it 

with, or post it to, the transfer secretaries, namely Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd, 

70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001 (P O Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107) so as to be 

received by them by no later than 10:00 on Friday, 15 October 2010. 

 

Dematerialised shareholders, other than those with “own name” registration 

If you hold dematerialised shares in Bauba through a CSDP or broker and do not have an “own 

name” registration, you must timeously advise your CSDP or broker of your intention to attend 

and vote at the annual general meeting or be represented by proxy thereat in order for  
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for the year ended 30 June 2010 (continued) 

 

your CSDP or broker to provide you with (your voting instruction at the annual general meeting) 

the necessary authorisation to do so, or should you not wish to attend the annual general 

meeting in person, you must timeously provide your CSDP or broker with your voting instruction 

in order for the CSDP or broker to vote in accordance with your instruction at the annual 

general meeting. 

 

Each shareholder, whether present in person or represented by proxy, is entitled to attend and 

vote at the annual general meeting.  On a show of hands, every shareholder who is present in 

person or by proxy shall have one vote, and, on a poll, every shareholder present in person or 

by proxy shall have one vote for each share held by him/her. 

 

By order of the Board 

 

Arcay Client Support (Proprietary) Limited 

(Registration Number 1998/025284/07) 

 

 

 

Company Secretary 

Date: 15 September 2010 
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Form of proxy 
for the year ended 30 June 2010 
 

 

BAUBA PLATINUM LIMITED 

(formely Absolute Holdings Limited) 

 (Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa) 

(Registration number 1986/004649/06) 

("Bauba" or "company") 

JSE code: BAU      ISIN code: ZAE000145686 
 

 

FORM OF PROXY (for use by certificated and own name dematerialised shareholders only) 

 

For use by certificated and “own name” registered dematerialised shareholders of the Company ("shareholders") 

at the Annual General Meeting of Bauba to be held at 10:00 on Tuesday, 19 October 2010 at the New Atrium, 

The JSE, One Exchange Square, Gwen Lane, Sandown ("the annual general meeting"). 

 

I/We (please print) _____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

of (address)  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

being the holder/s of ________________________ ordinary shares of R1.00 each in Bauba, appoint (see note 1 

below): 

 

1. ____________________________________________________________________ or failing him, 

 

2. ____________________________________________________________________ or failing him, 

 

3. the chairperson of the annual general meeting, 

 

as my/our proxy to act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting which will be held for the 

purpose of considering, and if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the resolutions to be proposed 

thereat and at any adjournment thereof; and to vote for and/or against the resolutions and/or abstain from 

voting in respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the following instructions 

(see note 2 below): 

 

 Number of votes 

 For Against Abstain 

Ordinary Resolution Number 1- 

Adoption of annual financial statements 
   

Ordinary Resolution Number 2- 

Director retirement of GP Sequeria  
   

Ordinary Resolution Number 3- 

Directors retirement of AM Sher 
   

Ordinary Resolution Number 4- 

Auditor‟s appointment and remuneration 
   

Ordinary Resolution Number 5- 

Non-executive directors‟ remuneration 
   

Ordinary Resolution Number 6- 

Placing unissued shares under control of directors 
   

Ordinary Resolution Number 7- 

General authority to issue shares for cash 
   

 

Signed at ______________________________ on _________________________________ 2010 

 

Signature __________________________________________________ 

 

Assisted by me (where applicable) ______________________________ 

 

Name__________________________Capacity____________________________Signature____________________ 
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Certificated shareholders and dematerialised shareholders with “own name” registration 

If you are a certificated shareholder or have dematerialised your shares with “own name” registration and you 

are unable to attend the annual general meeting of Bauba shareholders to be held at 10:00 on Tuesday, 19 

October 2010 at the New Atrium, The JSE, One Exchange Square, Gwen Lane, Sandown and wish to be 

represented thereat, you must complete and return this form of proxy in accordance with the instructions 

contained herein and lodge it with, or post it to, the transfer secretaries, namely Computershare Investor Services 

(Pty) Ltd, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001 (P O Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107), so as to be received by 

them no later than 10:00 on Friday, 15 October 2010. 

 

Dematerialised shareholders other than those with “own name” registration 

If you hold dematerialised shares in Bauba through a CSDP or broker other than with an “own name” registration, 

you must timeously advise your CSDP or broker of your intention to attend and vote at the annual general 

meeting or be represented by proxy thereat, in order for your CSDP or broker to provide you with the necessary 

authorisation to do so, or should you not wish to attend the annual general meeting in person, you must timeously 

provide your CSDP or broker with your voting instruction in order for the CSDP or broker to vote in accordance 

with your instruction at the annual general meeting. 

 

NOTES 

 

1. Each member is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be a member of the Company) to 

attend, speak and, on a poll, vote in place of that member at the annual general meeting. 

2. A member may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the member‟s 

choice in the space provided, with or without deleting "the chairman of the annual general meeting". The 

person whose name stands first on the form of proxy and who is present at the annual general meeting will 

be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow. 

3. A member's instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes 

exercisable by that member in the appropriate box/es provided.  Failure to comply with the above will be 

deemed to authorise the chairperson of the annual general meeting, if he/she is the authorised proxy, to 

vote in favour of the ordinary resolutions at the annual general meeting, or any other proxy to vote or to 

abstain from voting at the annual general meeting as he/she deems fit, in respect of all the member‟s 

votes exercisable thereat. 

4. A member or his/her proxy is not obliged to vote in respect of all the ordinary shares held or represented 

by him/her but the total number of votes for or against the resolutions and in respect of which any 

abstention is recorded may not exceed the total number of votes to which the member holder or his/her 

proxy is entitled. 

5. Forms of proxy must be lodged with the transfer secretaries, of the Company by not later than 10:00 on 

Friday, 15 October 2010. 

6. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant member from attending 

the annual general meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy 

appointed in terms hereof, should such member wish to do so. 

7. Any alterations or corrections to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory/ies. 

8. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative 

capacity must be attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the Company's transfer 

office or waived by the chairperson of the annual general meeting. 

9. The chairperson of the annual general meeting may reject or accept any proxy form which is completed 

and/or received other than in accordance with these instructions and notes, provided that he/she is 

satisfied as to the manner in which a member wishes to vote. 

 

 

 


